MEETING OF THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION
COMBINED AUTHORITY

To:

The Members of the Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority

Dear Member,
You are requested to attend a meeting of the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority to be held on Friday, 8th March, 2019 at 1.00pm in the Authority
Chamber - No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP.
If you have any queries regarding this meeting, please contact Trudy Bedford
on telephone number (0151) 330 1330.
Yours faithfully

Head of Paid Service

(Established pursuant to section 103 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development
and Construction Act 2009 as the Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton
and Wirral Combined Authority)

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LCR COMBINED AUTHORITY
HELD ON 1 FEBRUARY 2019
(Pages 1 - 8)

4.

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION METRO MAYOR ANNOUNCEMENTS AND
UPDATES
To receive updates from the Liverpool City Region Metro Mayor.
GOVERNANCE

5.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
To consider a report of the Treasurer.
(Pages 9 - 32)

6.

COMBINED AUTHORITY APPOINTMENTS
To consider the report of the Head of Paid Service.
(Pages 33 - 34)
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

7.

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FUND MERSEY REACH (KEY DECISION)
To consider the report of the Director of Commercial Development and
Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic
Development, Digital and Innovation.
(Pages 35 - 62)

8.

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SINGLE INVESTMENT FUND SKILLS
CAPITAL - EVERTON LEARNING AND SKILLS CENTRE
To consider the report of the Director of Commercial Development and the
Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and
Innovation.
(Pages 63 - 66)

9.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW LIVERPOOL CITY REGION URBAN
DEVELOPMENT FUND
To consider the report of the Director of Commercial Development and
Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic
Development, Digital and Innovation.
(Pages 67 - 70)
EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT, APPRENTICESHIPS AND SKILLS

10. ADULT EDUCATION BUDGET ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK
To consider the report of the Director of Policy and Strategic
Commissioning and the Portfolio Holder for Education, Employment,
Apprenticeships and Skills.
(Pages 71 - 106)
TRANSPORT
11. ALLOCATING FUNDS TO SUPPORT THE MAINTENANCE OF THE
KEY ROUTE NETWORK IN 2019/20
To consider the report of the Director of Policy and Strategic
Commissioning and the Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality.
(Pages 107 - 122)
12. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask questions which
have been submitted in accordance with Meetings Standing Orders No.
11. A period of 30 minutes will be allocated for this item. Copies of valid
questions will be circulated at the meeting.
Members of the public who wish to submit questions are asked to contact
Democratic Services either by:
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk
Telephone: 0151 330 1330
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, PO Box 1976, No. 1 Mann
Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP.
A proforma will be supplied for the submission of public questions which
for this meeting must be returned by 5.00pm on Monday 4 March 2019.

13. PETITIONS AND STATEMENTS
Members of the public who wish to submit a single position or statement in
accordance with Meetings Standing Orders No. 11 are asked to contact
Democratic Services either by:
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk
Telephone: 0151 330 1330
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, PO Box 1976, No. 1 Mann
Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP.
The single petition or statement for this meeting must be returned by
5.00pm on Monday 4 March 2019.
14. MINUTES OF THE TRANSPORT COMMITTEE HELD ON 31 JANUARY
2019
(Pages 123 - 132)

Agenda Item 3
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
PUBLICATION: 1 FEBRUARY 2019
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: 8 FEBRUARY 2019
FOLLOWING THE CALL-IN PERIOD, DECISIONS INCLUDED IN THESE
MINUTES MAY THEN BE IMPLEMENTED WHERE THEY HAVE NOT BEEN
SUBJECT TO A CALL-IN.
* DENOTES KEY DECISION

At a meeting of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority held in the
Authority Chamber - No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP on Friday, 1st February,
2019 the following Members were
P r e s e n t:
Metro Mayor S Rotheram
Chairperson of the Combined Authority
(in the Chair)
Councillor D Long, Councillor P Davies, Councillor I Maher, Councillor G Morgan,
Councillor R Polhill and Councillor L Robinson.
Deputy Portfolio Holders in attendance
Councillor T Hardy: Housing and Spatial Planning
Councillor N Nicholas: Transport and Air Quality
Councillor P Sinnott: Public Service Reform and Further Devolution
Councillor G Wood: Energy and Renewables
Councillor C Thomas: Policy, Resources, Strategy and Delivery
Mayoral Advisors in attendance
L Collins: Chair of FASJAB
K Farrell: Homelessness
135.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mayor J Anderson OBE, Mr A
Hamid MBE, Rt Hon J Kennedy (Portfolio Holder: Criminal Justice), Councillor W
Simon (Substitute for Mayor J Anderson OBE), Councillor I Moran (Associate
Member), Councillor T O’Neill (Associate Member), Councillor S Powell (Deputy
Portfolio Holder: Culture, Tourism and Visitor Economy), Councillor L RobertsonCollins (Deputy Portfolio Holder: Education, Employment, Apprenticeships and
Skills), Councillor E Spurrell (Deputy Portfolio Holder: Criminal Justice), Professor
Dame J Beer (Mayoral Advisor: Higher Education), L Berger MP (Mayoral Advisor:
Mental Health), Reverend Canon Dr E Loudon (Mayoral Advisor: Community and
Voluntary Sector), G Ben-Tovim OBE (Mayoral Advisor: Natural Environment), B
Spicer (Mayoral Advisor: Social Housing Growth) and S Wilde-McKeown (Mayoral
Advisor: Visitor Economy).

Page 1

136.

MINUTES SILENCE

Metro Mayor S Rotheram referred to the recent sad passing of Sandra Abbey,
the wife of Councillor Ron Abbey, Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council, who was a
long standing member of the Transport Committee.
The Combined Authority observed a minute’s silence as a mark of respect to
Sandra Abbey.
137.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
It was reported that no declarations of interest had been received.

138.

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION METRO MAYOR ANNOUNCEMENTS

Metro Mayor S Rotheram informed the LCR Combined Authority that the
previous night he had slept rough at Liverpool Lime Street Station as part of the Big
Station Sleep out, in aid of the Railway Charity.
The Metro Mayor reported that the aim of the sleep out was to raise money
for the Charity, who supported vulnerable young people who ran away and found
themselves in train stations and needing support. He advised that the Charity
provided wrap around support for young vulnerable children and to date he had
raised £2,200 which had contributed towards the total raised at Liverpool Lime Street
station of £6,000.
In conclusion, he reflected upon how the Local Authorities in the City Region
had created best practices to support people who were sleeping rough and
emphasised that the City Region would continue to strive to address the fundamental
issues of homelessness.
The Metro Mayor informed the LCR Combined Authority that Transport for the
North (TfN) had published its blueprint for the future of the North’s transport
infrastructure. This blueprint included the Combined Authorities priority plan to
ensure that the City Region was connected into the Northern Powerhouse Rail and
HS2 through a new twin-track rail line between Liverpool and Manchester. The Metro
Mayor reported that the proposals would be considered by the TfN Board as part of
its Strategic Transport Plan at its next meeting. He reflected upon the significant
economic importance the proposals would deliver for the City Region and wished to
place on record his thanks to the Leaders and Chief Executives from each of the
constituent Local Authorities along with key stakeholders for supporting the
proposals.
Metro Mayor S Rotheram announced that following an appropriate
procurement exercise, the preferred technical consultants had been identified to
develop the next phase of the business case for the Tidal project. The Metro Mayor
also advised that the preferred company and their key partners were organisations
with a global presence and reputation, and that the work would be developed and
delivered from their officers within the Liverpool City Region.
The Metro Mayor also advised that St Helens and Liverpool were both chosen
to host matches as part of the Rugby League World Cup in 2021. As part of the
Liverpool City Region Borough of Culture, Wirral would be hosting two top level
cycling events, firstly with the Tour of Britain visiting for the first time and secondly
Hamilton Square providing the circuit for an OVO Energy Tour in May. He

Page 2

acknowledged the hard work undertaken by Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council to
secure both of these events. The Metro Mayor also reported that the Women’s
Netball World Cup was to be held at the Marks and Spencer Bank Arena. These
events would showcase the great events which the City Region could host and help
to capitalise on increasing visitor numbers.
139.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LCR COMBINED AUTHORITY HELD
ON 11 JANUARY 2019

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2019 be
approved as a correct record.
140.

MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BUDGET SETTING REPORT 2019/20

Metro Mayor S Rotheram informed the LCR Combined Authority that the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on Wednesday 30 January and the Transport
Committee on Thursday 31 January had, had the opportunity to scrutinise the budget
presented for Members consideration today.
The Metro Mayor reported that this was the first time in which the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee had, had the opportunity to scrutinise the budget. A
summary of the discussions from both Committees had been circulated to Members
of the LCR Combined Authority for their consideration.
The Metro Mayor reflected upon the achievement of signing the Devolution
Agreement in 2015, which brought with it funding of £900million over a 30 year
period. He also reported that the City Region had been hardest hit as a consequence
of the austerity cuts. This had been confirmed by a recent report from Centre for
Cities who identified that Liverpool was one of the worst cities to be affected by the
cuts to local government funding over the past decade. However, the Metro Mayor
signalled how devolution had provided the City Region with the opportunity to begin
to turn the tide on austerity by bringing some much needed investment back into the
City Region. As a consequence of continued hard work in partnership with the
Leaders and Mayor of the constituent Local Authorities a further £189million in
additional funding had been secured.
The Metro Mayor highlighted the following which had begun to make a real
difference to people by:







Creating 9,000 jobs and over 5,000 apprenticeships;
Introducing half price travel for apprentices;
Investing £6million to support the City Region’s high streets;
Helping 800 families through the Households into Work programme;
Investing £8.3million in cycling and walking routes; and
Buying state of the art trains for the Merseyrail network.

The Metro Mayor explained that as Central Government provided no longterm dedicated funding to cover the costs of a Metro Mayor and a Combined
Authority, there was no alternative option but to introduce a precept. Furthermore, he
informed the Combined Authority that he wished there was an alternative to the
introduction of a precept as he recognised the financial challenge many were facing
across the Combined Authority.

Page 3

The Metro Mayor referenced the CIPFA report and how this had identified that
a long-term funding solution was required for the Combined Authority. As such work
had been undertaken to ensure that any precept was kept as low as possible, this
was achieved by reducing the costs of the Combined Authority and sharing services
with Merseytravel. As a consequence of this, 95% of households would pay no more
than 32p a week for the precept.
The Metro Mayor emphasised that this had not been an easy decision but
was necessary for the City Region to continue to see the benefits of devolution and
deliver the long-term vision for the area.
The Metro Mayor reported that the budget reflected his priorities and those of
the Combined Authority Leaders and included the following:









A £1 fast tag for City Region residents;
The infrastructure to provide ultra-fast broadband speeds for every part
of the City Region;
Proposals to re-regulate and take greater local control of the bus
network;
The delivery of the £50million Adult Education Budget;
A new generation of Mersey Ferries;
A new smart ticketing system to replace the Walrus Card;
A Mayoral Transport Plan to ease congestion, improve air quality and
increase connectivity;
The introduction of a City Region apprenticeship portal; and
The development of the Liverpool City Region Spatial Framework.

In conclusion, the Metro Mayor advised that delivering these projects would
bring significant benefits to the City Region and would also mean securing additional
funding. Furthermore, he assured Members that this budget would continue to create
inclusive growth and invest in building a fairer, stronger and more prosperous City
Region for everyone.
John Fogarty, Director of Corporate Services, presented the draft LCR
Combined Authority budget to Members. He reported that the budget had been
developed in an attempt to reduce and contain the costs for the taxpayer. However, it
was recognised that the responsibility of the Mayoral Combined Authority had grown
significantly and had also developed an ambitious programme of work which required
resources to support its delivery. It was further reported that where possible services
would be shared with Merseytravel to ensure costs were kept to a minimum.
In conclusion, the LCR Combined Authority was informed that the Transport
Committee had reviewed the aspects of the transport budget and had supported the
proposals in respect of the Tunnel Tolls.
RESOLVED – That:(i)

the report be noted;

(ii)

the Mayoral Budget as presented at Table 2 of this report be agreed ;

(iii)

the funding costs associated with the exercise of Mayoral
responsibilities as defined by the Combined Authorities (Finance)
Order 2017 through the establishment of a Mayoral Precept in

Page 4

2019/20 distributed between households on the basis set out in Table
1 of this report be agreed;
(iv)

the Combined Authority general budget for 2019/20 which is
summarised at Table 3 in the report now submitted be approved;

(v)

a freeze in the transport levy for 2019/20 with the transport levy
payable remaining at £95.4m and distributed in the manner set out in
Table 4 of the report now submitted be approved;

(vi)

the payment of operational grants to Merseytravel for £93.9m for
general responsibilities and £23.74m in respect of the operation of the
Mersey Tunnels be approved;

(vii)

the recommendation from the Transport Committee in respect of the
Tunnel Tolls at Table 5 of this report now submitted by approved;

(viii)

a grant of £5.5m to Merseytravel to support the delivery of the
strategic capital investment in transport on behalf of the Combined
Authority be approved;

(ix)

the planned release of £12m of Rail Reserves to support the Rolling
Stock programme costs be approved;

(x)

the allocation of the Transport Pot capital funding as detailed at
paragraph 6.5-6.7 of the report now submitted be approved;

(xi)

the establishment of a differential transport levy for Halton in 2019/20
and set the differential levy at £3.148m for 2019/20 be approved;

(xii)

the Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 incorporating the
Minimum Revenue Provision and associated Treasury Limits and
Prudential Indicators at Appendix 1 be approved; and

(xiii)

the Capital Strategy at Appendix 3 be approved.

N.B. All Members present voted in favour of recommendation (ii) and there were no
abstentions.
141.

TRANSFORMING CITIES FUND: APPROVAL TO RELEASE UP TO
£500,000 OF DEVELOPMENT FUNDING

The LCR Combined Authority considered a report from the Director of
Commercial Development and Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air
Quality which sought approval to commit £465,000 of the £500,000 Transforming
Cities Fund. This was to enable two schemes to progress to the next stage of design
and development.
Councillor L Robinson, Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality, provided
Members with a summary of the two schemes seeking approval. These included the
Liverpool City Region Green Bus Corridors which was seeking grant approval of up
to £215,000 and the Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network of up to
£250,000. Councillor Robinson also referred to the scheme which had been declined,
the Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options. He reported that this would have
been an exciting scheme for Liverpool and Wirral, however, the design and

Page 5

implementation would have taken longer than the four year timeframe associated
with the Transforming Cities Fund.
Members of the Combined Authority welcomed the two schemes, in particular
noting the improvements to the cycling routes across the City Region and the health
and wellbeing benefits they would bring to residents and visitors.
RESOLVED – That:(i)

a grant up to £465,000 from the Transforming Cities Development
Fund be approved to support the following:



142.

Liverpool City Region Green Bus corridors (up to £215,000); and
Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network (the “Cycle
Path Project” up to £250,000);

(ii)

support for the Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options for the
reasons noted in paragraph 3.4 of the report now submitted be
declined; and

(iii)

authority be delegated to the Combined Authority’s Head of Paid
Service to conclude satisfactory terms of the ensuing grant funding
agreement.

DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDER APPOINTMENT

The Combined Authority considered the report of the Monitoring Officer which
recommended that Councillor Kate Groucutt, St Helen’s Metropolitan Borough
Council be appointed as Deputy Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic
Development, Digital and Innovation.
RESOLVED – That Councillor Kate Groucutt be appointed as Deputy
Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation.
143.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
The Metro Mayor reported that no public questions had been received.

144.

PETITIONS AND STATEMENTS
The Metro Mayor reported that no petitions or statements had been received.

145.

MINUTES OF THE TRANSPORT COMMITTEE HELD ON 10 JANUARY
2019

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Transport Committee held on 10
January 2019 were received and confirmed by the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority.

Page 6

Minutes 135 to 145 be received as a correct record on the 8th day of March 2019.

Chairperson of the Combined Authority
(The meeting closed at 1.42 pm)

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authority/Authorities Affected:

All

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE TREASURER
EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to provide the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority (LCR CA) with the external audit plan of work (2018/19) which is proposed
by the appointed External Auditors, Mazars.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority:
(a)

approve the external audit plan of work for 2018/19 proposed by the
appointed External Auditors, and

(b)

request that further updates are provided as appropriate.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

The statutory responsibilities and powers of the External Auditors are set out in the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s Code of
Audit Practice.

3.2

The external audit process has two key objectives:
(a)

providing an opinion on the Financial Statements (including the Annual
Governance Statement); and

(b)

concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of resources (the value for money conclusion).

Page 9

3.3

To demonstrate how these objectives will be met the LCR CA External Auditor,
Mazars, have prepared the LCR CA External Audit Plan in respect of the 2018/19
Financial Statement audit and Value for Money work (Appendix 1). The plan is
presented to the Combined Authority for its consideration and approval.

4.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial
The external audit fee for 2018/19 is £36,334.

4.2

Human Resources
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

4.3

Physical Assets
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

4.4

Information Technology
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

5.

RISKS AND MITIGATION
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

6.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

7.

COMMUNICATION ISSUES
There are no direct issues arising from this report.

Page 10

8.

CONCLUSION
The attached External Audit plan is presented to the Combined Authority for
information and approval.

JOHN FOGARTY
Treasurer

Contact Officer(s):
Sarah Johnston, Head of Finance, Merseytravel 0151 330 1015
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager 0151 330 1151
Appendices:
Mazars LCR CA External Audit Plan 2018/19
Background Documents:
None

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Audit Strategy Memorandum
Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 13

CONTENTS
1.

Engagement and responsibilities summary

4

2.

Your audit engagement team

5

3.

Audit scope, approach and timeline

6

4.

Significant risks and key judgement areas

9

5.

Value for Money

13

6.

Fees for audit and other services

14

7.

Our commitment to independence

15

8.

Materiality and misstatements

16

Appendix A – Key communication points
Appendix B - Forthcoming accounting and other issues

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. It has been prepared for the sole use of the
Audit and Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance . No responsibility is accepted to any other
person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is
disclosed to a third party.

2

Page 14

Mazars LLP
14th Floor,
The Plaza,
100 Old Hall Street,
LIVERPOOL,
L3 9QJ

Members of the Audit Risk and Governance Committee
1 Mann Island
Liverpool
L3 1BP

9 January 2019

Dear Sirs / Madams
Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2019
We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (the Combined Authority) for
the year ending 31 March 2019
The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and
provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its
clients, Section 7 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors.
We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:
• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;
• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;
• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and
• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external
operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing the Combined Authority which may affect the audit, including the
likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.
This document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, is the basis for discussion of our
audit approach, and any questions or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor.
This document also contains specific appendices that outline our key communications with you during the course of the audit, and
forthcoming accounting issues and other issues that may be of interest.
Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to continuously provide technical excellence with the highest level of service
quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or comments about this
document or audit approach, please contact me on 0151 237 2238 .
Yours faithfully
{{_es_:signer1:signature }}

Gareth Hitchmough (Jan 14, 2019)

Gareth Hitchmough, Partner and Engagement Lead
Mazars LLP

3

Page 15

1.

ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES SUMMARY

Overview of engagement
We are appointed to perform the external audit of Liverpool City Region Combined Authority for the year to 31 March 2019. The scope of
our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/
Our responsibilities
Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice
issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below:

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.
Audit
opinion

Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material error and give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Combined
Authority for the year.

Reporting
Going
to the
concern
NAO

We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Combined Authority’s financial statements with its Whole of
Government Accounts (WGA) submission.

Value for
Money

We are required to conclude whether the Combined Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in it its use of resources. We discuss our approach to Value for Money
work further in section 5 of this report.

Fraud

Electors’
rights

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us
about the accounting records of the Combined Authority and consider any objection made to the accounts. We
also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities
in the United Kingdom.

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities. The responsibility for safeguarding
assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with
governance and management. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and perform our audit so as to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.
As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those charged with governance as to their knowledge of
instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on management controls that mitigate the fraud risks.
The Combined Authority is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting. As auditors, we are required to consider the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation of the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made.
For the purpose of our audit, we have identified the Audit and Governance Committee as those charged with governance.
1. Engagement and
responsibilities

4

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 16

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

2.

YOUR AUDIT ENGAGEMENT TEAM

Partner &
Engagement
Lead

Senior
Manager

Audit
Senior

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

5

2. Your audit
team

Gareth Hitchmough
Gareth.Hitchmough@mazars.co.uk
T:0151 237 2238
M:07891 739208

Chris Whittingham
Chris.Whittingham@mazars.co.uk
T: 0151 2372255
M: 07909 982497

Patrick McCloskey
Patrick.Mccloskey@mazars.co.uk
T: 0151 237 2254
M: 07833 059203

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 17

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

3.

AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE

Audit scope
Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.
Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and
professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those
aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those affected by management
judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which
have been found to contain material errors in the past.
Audit approach
Our audit approach is a risk-based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of
the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in
response to this assessment.
If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide
controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to
our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and
comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures) and substantive analytical procedures.
Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of
controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and
disclosure.
Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in
section 8.
The diagram below outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.
•

Final review and disclosure checklist of financial

•

Updating our understanding of the Combined

statements

Authority

•

Final partner review

•

•

Agreeing content of letter of representation

•

Reporting to Audit and Governance Committee

•

Reviewing post balance sheet events

•

Signing our opinion

•

Review of draft financial statements

•

Reassessment of audit strategy,

assessments
•

Delivering our planned audit testing

•

Continuous communication on emerging

Development of our audit strategy
• Agreement of timetables

Completion
July 2019

Planning
Nov 2018 – Feb
2019

Fieldwork
June-July 2019

Interim
March-April
2019

revising as necessary
•

Initial opinion and value for money risk

•

•
•
•

Preliminary analytical procedures

Documenting systems and controls
Walkthrough procedures
Controls testing, including general
and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

issues
•

Clearance meeting

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

6

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 18

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

3.

AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Reliance on internal audit
Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures.
We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation
procedures.
Where we intend to rely on the work of internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit team and perform our own
audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.
Management’s and our experts
Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Combined Authority financial statements. We also use experts to
assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.
Items of account

Management's expert

Our expert

Defined benefit pension assets and liability

Mercer - Actuary for the Merseyside
Pension Fund

PWC - Consulting actuary appointed
on behalf of the National Audit Office

Property, plant and equipment valuation

The Combined Authority are yet to appoint
external valuers to undertake a full
programme of valuations in 2018/19.

We will use available third party
information to challenge the key
valuation assumptions.

Service organisations
International Auditing Standards (UK) define service organisations as third party organisations that provide services to the Combined
Authority that are part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are required to obtain an understanding of the
services provided by service organisations as well as evaluating the design and implementation of controls over those services. The table
below summarises the service organisations used by the Combined Authority and our planned audit approach.
Items of account

Payroll expenditure

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

7

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

Service organisation

Audit approach

CGI

We plan to obtain assurance by
understanding the processes and
controls that the Combined Authority
has in place to assure itself that
transactions are processed correctly.
Our testing will include sample testing
of transactions based on evidence
available from the Combined Authority
rather than the shared service
provider.

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 19

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

3.

AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Group audit approach
The Combined Authority prepares Group accounts and consolidates the following significant component.

•

Merseytravel

In auditing the accounts of the Combined Authority Group financial statements we need to obtain assurance over the transactions in the
Group relating to the subsidiary. To plan to obtain the necessary assurance over the Authority’s group accounts by placing reliance on the
work we will complete in our capacity as component auditors on the financial statements of Merseytravel.
We have not identified any significant risks for Group accounts purposes in relation to the components. The significant risks and areas of
audit focus for the Combined Authority as a single-entity are set out in section 5. Based on our initial planning discussions we do not
consider these significant risks to be risks for the component subsidiary companies.
Timeline
The Timeline of the Audit is set out on page 6 of this document and is planned to meet the statutory audit deadline of 31 July 2019.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

8

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 20

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

4.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant risks to the audit of financial
statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or standard, as defined below:
Significant risk

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, requires
special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the entity’s controls,
including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk

An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than a
significant risk. Enhanced risks incorporate but may not be limited to:
•

key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

•

other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing and
require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement, there are
no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential misstatements or the
likelihood of the risk occurring.

Standard risk

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant. We have
summarised our audit response to these risks on the next page.

High

Risk

3
4

1
Financial
impact

2

1

Management override of control

2

Revenue recognition

3

Property, plant and equipment valuation

4

Defined benefit liability valuation

Low
Likelihood

Low

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

9

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

High

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 21

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

4.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS
(CONTINUED)

We provide more detail on the identified risks and our testing approach with respect to significant risks in the table below. An audit is a
dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will
report this to the Audit Committee and Governance Committee.
Significant risks
Description of risk
1

Planned response

Management override of controls
Management at various levels within an organisation
are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
their ability to manipulate accounting records and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which
such override could occur there is a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud on all audits.

2

•

Material accounting estimates;

•

Journal entries, focussing on those that we determine to contain
certain risk characteristics; and

•

Any significant transactions outside the normal course of
business or otherwise unusual.

Revenue recognition
Our audit methodology incorporates this risk as a
significant risk at all audits, although based on
circumstances it is rebuttable. Based on our initial
planning discussions we have concluded that we can
rebut the presumption for the majority of the
Combined Authority’s revenue income and
expenditure. However, for the tunnels income stream
we will carry out further detailed work.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

10

We plan to address the risk through performing audit procedures
that cover a range of areas, including:

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

For the tunnels income stream we will assess the controls operating
over this income, carry out analytical procedures and consider any
more specific testing as required. Our audit approach will also
incorporate testing of payments and receipts around the year-end to
provide assurance that there are no material unrecorded items of
income and expenditure in the 2018/19 accounts.

5. Value for
Money

Page 22

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

4.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS
(CONTINUED)

Significant risks
Description of risk
3

Planned response

Property, plant and equipment valuation
The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are
subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value
should reflect the fair value at that date. The Combined
Authority adopts a revaluation model which sees all
land and buildings revalued every five years.

In relation to the valuation of land and buildings we will:
•

Assess the skill, competence and experience of the
Combined Authority’s external valuers, when appointed

•

Consider whether the overall revaluation methodology
used by the appointed valuer is in line with industry
practice, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Combined
Authority’s accounting policies;

•

Critically assess the appropriateness of the underlaying
data and the assumptions used in the valuer’s calculations,
based on our expectations by reference to sector and local
knowledge;

•

Assess the movement in market indices between the
revaluation dates and the year end to determine whether
there have been material movements over that time; and

•

Test a sample of items of capital expenditure in 2018/19 to
confirm that the additions are appropriately valued in the
financial statements.

The valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment involves
the use of a management expert (the valuer), and
incorporates material assumptions and estimates.
As a result of the rolling programme of revaluations
there is a risk that individual assets not revalued for up
to four years are not valued at their materially correct
fair value. In addition as the valuations are undertaken
through the year there is a risk that the fair value as
the assets is materially different at the year end.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

11

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 23

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

4.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS
(CONTINUED)

Significant risks
Description of risk
4

Planned response

Defined benefit liability valuation
In relation to the valuation of the Combined Authority’s defined
benefit pension liability we will:

The net pension liability represents a material
element of 's balance sheet. The Combined
Authority is an admitted body of the Merseyside
Pension Fund (MPF), which had its last triennial
valuation completed as at 31 March 2016.

•

Critically assess the competency, objectivity and independence
of the MPF’s Actuary, Mercers;

•

Liaise with the auditors of the Merseyside Pension Fund to gain
assurance that the controls in place at the Pension Fund are
operating effectively. This will include the processes and
controls in place to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the
Pension Fund for the purposes of the IAS19 valuation is
complete and accurate;

•

Test payroll transactions at the Combined Authority to provide
assurance over the pension contributions which are deducted
and paid to the Pension Fund by the Combined Authority;

•

Review the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability
valuation methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary,
and the key assumptions included within the valuation. This will
include comparing them to expected ranges, utilising
information provided by PWC, consulting actuary engaged by
the National Audit Office;

•

Agree the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the
Fund Actuary for accounting purposes to the pension
accounting entries and disclosures in the Combined Authority’s
financial statements.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension
Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, most
notably around the actuarial assumptions, and
actuarial methodology which results in the
Combined Authority’s overall valuation.
There are financial assumptions and demographic
assumptions used in the calculation, such as the
discount rate, inflation rates and mortality rates.
The assumptions should also reflect the profile of
the Combined Authority’s employees, and should
be based on appropriate data. The basis of the
assumptions is derived on a consistent basis year
to year, or updated to reflect any changes.
There is a risk that the assumptions and
methodology used in valuing the Combined
Authority’s pension obligation are not reasonable or
appropriate to the Combined Authority’s
circumstances. This could have a material impact
to the net pension liability

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

12

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 24

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

5.

VALUE FOR MONEY

Our approach to Value for Money
We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Combined Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry
out, and sets out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider.
The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Combined Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’
To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:
• informed decision making;
• sustainable resource deployment; and
• working with partners and other third parties.

A summary of the work we undertake to reach our conclusion is provided below:
Risk mitigation work

Risk assessment

Other procedures

NAO Guidance

Consider the work of regulators

Sector-wide issues
Your operational and business
risks

Planned procedures to mitigate
the risk of forming an incorrect
conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual
Governance Statement
Consistency review and reality
check

Knowledge from other audit work

Significant Value for Money risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to identify whether or not a Value for Money (VFM) exists. Risk,
in the context of our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the
Combined Authority being inadequate. As outlined above, we draw on our deep understanding of the Combined Authority and its partners,
the local and national economy and wider knowledge of the public sector.
For the 2018/19 financial year, we have identified the following significant risk to our VFM work :
Description of significant risk

Planned response

Governance Arrangements – Our initial risk assessment noted the lack of risk
management arrangements in place during 2017/18 and the quoracy issues of
the Combined Authority key committees that resulted in an “except for” opinion
being issued in 2017/18. We are aware that the Combined Authority was working
to develop effective risk management arrangements and approved a risk
management strategy and risk register in May 2018.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

13

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 25

We will review the continued development of risk
management arrangements during 2018/19 and
assess the plans in place to help ensure
appropriate attendance at key Combined
Authority committees so that there is adequate
challenge and scrutiny of decisions.

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

6.

FEES FOR AUDIT AND OTHER SERVICES

Fees for work as the Combined Authority’s appointed auditor
At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by PSAA as communicated in our fee letter of 25
April 2018.
2017/18 fee

Service

KPMG

Code audit work

£47,187

2018/19 fee
£36,334

Fees for non-PSAA work

We have not been engaged by the Combined Authority to carry out any additional work over and above the audit of the Combined
Authority’s statutory audit. Should we be engaged to undertake any additional work we will consider whether there are any actual,
potential or perceived threats to our independence. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in
section 8.
Services provided to other entities within the Combined Authority Group
We were also appointed by PSAAA to perform the external audit of Merseytravel for the year to 31 March 2019 where the fee for Code
audit work is £29,121.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

14

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 26

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

7.

OUR COMMITMENT TO INDEPENDENCE

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually, in writing, that
we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any matters or relationship which we
believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit team.
Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in
our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related
entities creating any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your
auditors.
We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and
independence. These policies include:
•

all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

•

all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethics training;

•

rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team;

•

use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved
in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, and Mazars LLP are
independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity,
objectivity or independence please discuss these with Gareth Hitchmough in the first instance.
Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Gareth Hitchmough will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the
impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.
Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

15

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 27

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

8.

MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS

Summary of initial materiality thresholds
Group

Combined Authority–
Single entity
materiality

Overall materiality

£6,754,000

£4,953,000

Performance materiality

£4,755,000

£3,467,000

£204,000

£149,000

Threshold

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit Committee

Materiality
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a
whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a
combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a
group and not on specific individual users.
The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information
needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:
•

have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

•

have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

•

understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

•

recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration
of future events; and

•

will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.
Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for
determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and
determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.
The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either
individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.
We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused
us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage.
Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of gross expenditure on the provision of services. We have calculated a headline
figure for materiality and have identified separate levels for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which
all identified errors will be reported to the Audit Risk and Governance Committee.
We consider that gross expenditure at the provision of services remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as such,
we base our materiality levels around this benchmark.
We expect to set a materiality threshold at [x%] of4.[insert
benchmark].
Significant
1. Engagement and
responsibilities

16

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 28

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

8.

MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We have set our materiality threshold at 1.8% of the benchmark based on the 2017/18 audited financial statements and we anticipate the
overall materiality for the 2018/19 to be £6.754 million for the audit of the Group financial statements and £4.953 million for the audit of
the Combined Authority’s single entity financial statements.
After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.
Performance Materiality
Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole to
reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality
for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we
have applied 70% of overall materiality as performance materiality. This also takes account of the fact that 2018/19 is the first year that the
Combined Authority is audited by Mazars.
Specific items of lower materiality
We have also calculated materiality for specific classes of transactions, balances or disclosures where we determine that misstatements
of a lesser amount than materiality for the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements. We have set specific materiality for the following items of account:
- Officer remuneration Bandings - £5,000 ((reflecting the published salary bandings)
- Related Party transactions – To be confirmed on receipt of draft financial statements
Misstatements
We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors
identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit Risk and Governance Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that
we consider would not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material
effect on the financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is
£204,000 for the Group and £149,000 for the Combined Authority single-entity financial statements based on 3% of overall materiality.
Reporting to the Audit Risk and Governance Committee
To comply with International Standards on Auditing (UK), the following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit
Committee:
•

summary of adjusted audit differences;

•

summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

•

summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

17

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 29

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

APPENDIX A – KEY COMMUNICATION POINTS
ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To
Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:
Required communication

Audit Strategy
Memorandum

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider
responsibilities



Planned scope and timing of the audit



Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement



Our commitment to independence



Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors



Materiality and misstatements



Fees for audit and other services



Audit Completion
Report




Significant deficiencies in internal control



Significant findings from the audit



Significant matters discussed with management



Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement



Summary of misstatements



Management representation letter



Our proposed draft audit report



1. Engagement and
responsibilities

18

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 30

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

APPENDIX B – FORTHCOMING ACCOUNTING AND OTHER
ISSUES
Changes relevant to 2018/19
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - the standard replaces IAS 39 and introduces significant changes to the recognition and measurement of
the Combined Authority’s financial instruments, particularly its financial assets.
Although the accounting changes may be complex and may require the reclassification of some instruments, it is likely that Merseytravel
will continue to measure the majority of its financial assets at amortised costs.
For organisations that hold instruments that will be required to be measured at fair value under the new standard, there may be instances
where changes in these fair values are recognised immediately and impact on the general fund. At this stage it is unclear whether
statutory provisions, over and above those already in place, will be put in place to mitigate the impact of these fair value movements on
the general fund balance held by the Combined Authority.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - the 2018/19 Code also applies the requirements of IFRS 15, but it is unlikely that this
will have significant implications for most local authorities.
There are no other significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) for 2018/19.

1. Engagement and
responsibilities

19

2. Your audit
team

3. Audit scope

4. Significant
risks and key
judgements

5. Value for
Money

Page 31

6. Fees

7.
Independence

8. Materiality
and
misstatements

Appendices

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authorities Affected:

All

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE
COMBINED AUTHORITY APPOINTMENT

1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

The purpose of the report is to appointment a nominated substitute to the Liverpool
City Region Combined Authority.

2.

RECOMMENDATION
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority are recommended to approve the
appointment of Councillor K Groucutt as St Helens MBC nominated substitute to the
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.

3.

NOMINATION

3.1

St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council have advised that their nominated
substitute to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority has changed with
Councillor K Groucuttt replacing Councillor A Bowden.

4.

CONCLUSION

4.1

This report has recommended an appointment to the Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority.
FRANK ROGERS
Interim Head of Paid Service

Contact Officer: Trudy Bedford, Committee Services Manager (0151) 330 1330

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authority/Authorities Affected:

Sefton

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: Not in respect of the Report and Appendix 1.
Appendices 2 to 4 are Exempted by virtue of paragraph
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
AND THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER: INCLUSIVE GROWTH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
DIGITAL AND INNOVATION
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FUND – MERSEY REACH

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1.

The purpose of this report is to seek a Combined Authority approval to amend the
terms and amount of finance provided by the Strategic Investment Fund to support
the Mersey Reach project.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1.

It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority:
(a)

Rescind the decision made by the Combined Authority at its meeting on 4 July
2017 in relation to the Mersey Reach SIF application (minute 40 resolution (ii))
which was as follows:


“RESOLVED – That the Full Business Case in relation to the Mersey
Reach project and the award of Single Investment Fund grant support in
the maximum sum of £1,144,662 be approved.”

(b)

Approve the replacement of the previously approved grant with a repayable,
commercial loan to the maximum value of £4,512,500. This loan will be made
to Chancerygate (Aintree) Ltd (“the Borrower”) and will be a 50% share of a
£9,025,000 loan to be made jointly with the Chrysalis Fund.

(c)

Grant authority to the Head of Paid Service and the Director of Commercial
Development and Investment to finalise negotiations of detailed terms of the

Page 35

loan funding and associated agreements in consultation with the Combined
Authority Monitoring Officer and Combined Authority Treasurer.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1.

The Mersey Reach project is for the reclamation of a 5 hectare site (the former
Peerless Edible Oil Refinery) bounded by Dunnings Bridge Road, Heysham Rd,
Sandiways Avenue and Lunt Avenue and the construction of 110,800 sq ft of
speculative and bespoke floor space, together with petrol station and coffee shop.
A schematic of the proposed development is set out as Appendix 1.

3.2.

The Combined Authority approved on 14 July 2017 (Agenda Item 7) the award of a
grant to the maximum value of £1,144,662 subject to certain conditions set out in
Appendix 2 to the report then set out, including specifically, that the grant should
reduce once actual costs were established. Application of such conditions
subsequently reduced the awarded proposed grant to £949,289.

3.3.

The Chrysalis Fund (“Chrysalis”) has been working with the project Sponsor
(Chancerygate Ltd, the ultimate parent company of the Borrower) to provide debt
finance to support the construction of the proposed facilities. As a result of
limitations to the amount of funding Chrysalis can provide, as a result of the
resources available and restrictions on proportion of project cost, the Sponsor and
Chrysalis have jointly requested the LCRCA replace the grant with a 50% share of a
commercial loan of £9,025,000.
The proposed LCRCA share thus being
£4,512,500.

3.4.

Such change in award will allow:



The Combined Authority to recoup its investment in the project with interest;
and
Allow the Sponsor to potentially invest in 2 further projects in the City Region.
Such further projects would not be contractually guaranteed by either party.

Chrysalis Fund
3.5.

The Chrysalis Fund is the City Region’s £35 million Urban Development Fund. It
originally received its funding from the 2007-2013 European Regional Development
Fund for the North West under the Joint European Support for Sustainable
Investment in City Areas (“JESSICA”) programme.

3.6.

The fund was novated to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority in March
2017 although is managed independently on its behalf. Its objectives are to:





Facilitate the delivery of urban development projects that support employment
creation and economic growth in the Liverpool City Region;
Fund projects that fall outside the normal parameters of mainstream criteria,
e.g. those with fail to attract commercial finance or whose performance and
outputs will be improved through Chrysalis participation; and
Maintain a sustainable source of recyclable finance for the benefit of the
Liverpool City Region, including cooperation with grant funders to minimise the
grant component required to progress eligible projects.

Page 36

3.7.

The Combined Authority has worked closely with Chrysalis on developing and
agreeing the terms of the loan and the legal documentation.

4.

KEY TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF LOAN

4.1.

The Combined Authority in conjunction with Chrysalis has negotiated terms of the
commercial loan. Detailed legal agreements are significantly progressed to
conclude the loan, subject to authority being granted by the LCRCA. This includes
both interest and fees which will be payable as well as security arrangements to
minimise the risk and impact of any default (inability to repay).

4.2.

Detailed Heads of Terms in respect of the loan are attached as Appendix 2 and are
summarised below.
Interest and Fees

4.3.

The following terms and conditions apply
4.3.1. An interest rate set a fixed amount (“the Interest Margin”) above European
Union Base Rate (currently 1.09%) as set out in Appendix 2 (“Interest Margin
and Fees”). The EU Base Rate is published monthly, and the final interest
rate will be fixed on entering into the loan on the basis of the EU Base Rate
extant at that time. The total rate payable thus being the EU Base Rate plus
the Interest Margin.
4.3.2. An arrangement fee being a specified percent of the total loan facility
(“Arrangement Fee”) less a fee payable to Chrysalis in respect of their costs
incurred. This is set out in Appendix 2 (“Interest Margin and Fees” and
“Chrysalis Fee”);
4.3.3. A commitment fee as set out in Appendix 2 (“Commitment Fee”). A
Commitment Fee is payable in respect of that part of the loan which has
been made available but has not been drawn at any time. This is a standard
element in commercial loans.

4.4.

Combined Authority officers and Chrysalis are of the view this is in line with market
conditions.

4.5.

The Combined Authority will earn both interest and fees over the duration of the
loan. However the precise amount will depend on the exact amount the borrower
requires and the actual date funds are required and the date of repayment in
accordance with paragraph 4.6. The estimate of interest and fees earned is set out
in Appendix 2 (“Estimated Total Interest and Fees Earned”)

Page 37

Repayment
4.6.

The Borrower will be required to repay the loan together with any outstanding
interest on the earlier of:

The sale or refinancing of the Facilities post construction;

3 years from entering into the Loan (approx. April 2022).

4.7.

Until the loans are repaid in full, the Borrower will not be able to pay a dividend or
otherwise take payment/release cash from the project.
Security Features

4.8.

In order to minimise the risk of non-repayment, the Combined Authority and
Chrysalis will benefit from market standard security features. The main aspects of
this are:
4.8.1. The Borrower will invest an initial upfront amount in the development of the
facilities. This is set out in Appendix 2 (“Sponsor Contribution”) Apart from
an advance element of the loan respect of the land, the Borrower’s money
will need to be spent prior to any loan from the Combined Authority/Chrysalis.
This should mean the value of work undertaken will always significantly
exceed the amount lent.
4.8.2. Chancerygate Ltd (the Borrower’s ultimate parent company) will provide
corporate guarantees in respect of repayment of the loan and in respect of
funding any cost overruns. As at 31 March 2018, the last date for which
public accounts are available, Chancerygate Ltd had net Assets of £56
million and this guarantee is therefore considered to be strong.
4.8.3. GVA Grimley have independently valued the developed site including an
already agreed sale of the proposed petrol station and coffee shop to an
experienced forecourt operator (Appendix 2 “Petrol Station Purchaser”). This
valuation report is attached as Appendix 3.

4.9.

Whilst no loan can be considered to be risk free, the risk of default is considered to
be low. The security arrangements have been reviewed on behalf of the Combined
Authority and Chrysalis by GVA Grimley who have confirmed that the terms of the
loan are in line with market conditions.

5.

INVESTMENT PANEL

5.1.

The proposed arrangements set out in this report were considered by the Combined
Authority’s internal investment panel on 24 January 2019. It considered both the
terms of the loan and a revised assessment of the economic impact of the project
undertaken by Amion Consulting. This showed an improvement in the key value for
money indicator resulting from the expectation that the Combined Authority will be
repaid in full. This assessment is included as Appendix 4.

5.2.

The Investment Panel endorsed the project and the revised arrangements.

Page 38

6.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

6.1.

Financial
The Combined Authority Treasurer has confirmed that the proposed funding
request can be accommodated as part of the overall Strategic Investment Fund
allocation.

6.2.

Human Resources
The Investment Team and Legal Team will lead the negotiation of the Loan
Agreement and the Programme Management Office will have responsibility for
managing the delivery of the Combined Authority’s investment.
The Chrysalis Fund will act as the Agent, based on their experience, in respect of
the loan on behalf of both parties. The Agent acts as the interface between the
Borrower and Chrysalis/Combined Authority as lenders ensuring that the Borrower
is acting in accordance with the loan conditions.

6.3.

Physical Assets
The physical assets to be created by the project are fully detailed in this report.

6.4.

Information Technology
The approval of funding will not give rise to Information Technology issues.

7.

RISKS AND MITIGATION

7.1.

The key risk in respect of the project is that the Borrower will be unable to complete
the construction of the Facility or once completed unable to sell and repay the
loans.

7.2.

Construction risk is mitigated by requirement for the Borrower to enter into a fixed
price construction contract which includes retentions and bonding provided by the
contractor. Any loan against the construction will be subject to legal advisors and
technical consultants’ confirmation that this contract is satisfactory and in line with
market norms.

7.3.

Repayment risk is mitigated by the security features of the loan described in
paragraph 4.7 of this report.

Page 39

8.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

8.1.

Equality and Diversity implications are considered as part of the appraisal process
in accordance with the LCRCA’s Investment Strategy.

9.

COMMUNICATION ISSUES

9.1.

All projects approved will be subject to the Combined Authority’s branding
guidelines and publicity requirements placed upon them as part of the Lending
Agreement. In addition the Combined Authority will, through its adopted
communication protocols, publicise the award of funding to the projects and the
associated envisaged outcomes.

10.

CONCLUSION

10.1. This report presents the revised Loan Funding arrangements in respect of the
Mersey Reach project and gives approval to the Head of Paid Service and Director
of Commercial Development and Investment to proceed with the finalisation of the
lending agreements.

MARK BOUSFIELD
Director of Commercial Development and Investment
COUNCILLOR P DAVIES
Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation

Contact Officer(s):
Mark Bousfield, Director of Commercial Development and Investment
Email: mark.bousfield@liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk
Appendices:
1.

Schematic of proposed development

The following appendices are exempted for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
2.
3.
4.

Heads of terms for proposed loan
GVA Grimley Valuation Report
Revised economic analysis

Background Documents:
1.

Combined Authority Report, 14 July 2017 (Agenda Item 7)

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2018

Authority/Authorities Affected:

Liverpool

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
AND THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER: INCLUSIVE GROWTH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMEN,
DIGITAL AND INNOVATION

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SINGLE INVESTMENT FUND SKILLS CAPITAL
EVERTON LEARNING AND SKILLS CENTRE
FULL BUSINESS CASE DECISIONS

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to seek Combined Authority decision on a project
change request for Skills Capital Everton Learning and Skills Centre (SIF 0112).
The report seeks approval by the Combined Authority as the revised project
proposal constitutes a “material change”.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority approve the
allocation of the full grant for use at an alternative site in Granby Children’s Centre,
subject to confirmation by independent appraiser that the project’s performance and
value for money are equivalent to those generated by the original site.
Revised proposals will retain the key elements of the original agreement in relation
to project costs and outputs; however timescales will be extended by up to six
months.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

The Combined Authority approved Skills Capital SIF funding for the Everton
Learning and Skills Centre project on 18 August 2017.

3.2

This investment will maximize the impact of adult and community learning on the
social and economic well-being of individuals, families and communities by
delivering a fully integrated curriculum offer to parents, carers and local residents.

Page 63

Over the life of the project, the project will engage 372 additional learners; progress
33% into further learning/training and 25% into employment.

3.3

Initial project proposals were to extend, adapt and refurbish 317 sq. m of existing
accommodation within the Everton Children’s Centre in Spencer Street, Everton,
North Liverpool; transforming this into an adult education delivery point. The facility
was to provide four new classrooms, a new multi-media suite and a new teaching
kitchen equipped to deliver training. Following the capital spend a responsive range
of learning programmes and interventions would be delivered under existing
revenue funding arrangements.

3.4

However, the project can no longer proceed as intended at this site due to the
withdrawal of Everton Children’s Centre from project proposals.

3.5

The applicant has therefore requested that the grant allocation be used to support
similar project proposals at a new site; the Granby Adult Learning Centre and
Granby Children’s Centre. The building work would be within the site, on land solely
owned and occupied by Liverpool City Council (LCC) and would add an additional
mezzanine floor. The same expanse of classroom space would be refurbished.

3.6

The learner outputs (including the area of developed floor space) in the grant
funding agreement remain unchanged. The timeline for their achievement will be
extended from February to July 2022.

3.7

Delivery and financial completion timeframes will also be extended by up to six
months to February and March 2020 respectively. Similarly, the funding profile will
change as shown below:
Initial Project Value and Allocation
2017/18
Revenue
£

Capital
£

2018/19
Revenue
£

Invoiced
and
defrayed
Payment
due

Capital
£

2019/20
Revenue
£

506,800

Capital
£

2020/21
Revenue
£

Capital
£

360,200

Revised Project Value and Allocation
2017/18
Revenue
£
Invoiced
and
defrayed
Payment
due

Capital
£

2018/19
Revenue
£

Capital
£

67,000

Page 64

2019/20
Revenue
£

Capital
£

800,000

2020/21
Revenue
£

Capital
£

3.8

A further and independent appraisal has been commissioned to test the impact of
the revised proposals on the previous value for money assessment. The outcome
and recommendations of this appraisal are currently awaited.

4.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1.

Financial
There is no additional funding required; the project will be delivered to the
previously approved funding allocation of £692,000.
The Combined Authority will monitor the project within the agreed funding envelope.

4.2.

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications to this report.

4.3.

Physical Assets
There are no physical asset implications of this project for the Combined Authority.

4.4.

Information Technology
There are no Information Technology implications to this report.

5.

RISKS AND MITIGATION
The risk is low; the applicant is member authority, the funding value is low and the
Combined Authority monitors the project and its associated risks on a monthly
basis.

6.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no equality and diversity implications to report.

7.

COMMUNICATION ISSUES
The decision will be communicated to the applicant and the grant funding
agreement updated if approval is granted.

Page 65

8.

CONCLUSION
This report outlines to the Combined Authority the applicants request and stated
implications which are considered to be negligible at this point in time.

MARK BOUSFIELD
Director of Commercial Development and Investment
COUNCILLOR P DAVIES
Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation

Contact Officer(s):
Dan McCafferty, Corporate PMO Head of Service (0151 330 4513)
Background Documents:
Combined Authority report dated 18 August 2017.

Page 66

Agenda Item 9
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY

To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authority/Authorities Affected:

All

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
AND PORTFOLIO HOLDER: INCLUSIVE GROWTH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
DIGITAL AND INNOVATION
ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW LIVERPOOL CITY REGION URBAN DEVELOPMENT
FUND

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1.

In March 2018, the Combined Authority considered and approved a report for the
establishment of a new Urban Development Fund (UDF) for the city region. This
approval resolved that:
(a)

An application for £25million be progressed to the Local Growth Team of the
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government for the
establishment of an Urban Development Fund;

(b)

Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Paid Service, in conjunction
with Treasurer and the Metro Mayor to complete and submit the required
application documentation to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local
Government; and

(c)

A follow-up report on the progress of the bid and any associated actions,
including financial and staffing implications be brought to a future meeting of
the Combined Authority.

1.2.

The purpose of this report is to update members on progress made in relation to the
resolutions above and to seek authority to accept, subject to approval of the
application, the award of funding of £25,000,000 from MHCLG.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1.

It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority:
(a)

Note that the application to MHCLG for ESIF funding of £25 million, including
the provision of £1.4m match funding from the Combined Authority, was
submitted on 1 February 2019.

Page 67

(b)

Accept, subject to approval of the application, the award of funding of
£25,000,000 of European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) monies from
MHCLG for the establishment of the proposed UDF.

(c)

Grant delegated authority to the Head of Paid Service to negotiate the terms
and enter into the ensuing Grant Funding Agreement in consultation with the
Combined Authority Monitoring Officer and Combined Authority Treasurer.

(d)

Grant delegated authority to the Head of Paid Service to conduct the
necessary procurement for the services of a Fund Advisor, as per the
requirements of Article 16 Commission Regulation (EU) 651/2014.

(e)

Note the proposed use of £1.4m in match funding to be deployed.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

In 2012, the Chrysalis Fund, was created to support urban development across the
LCR. The basic principle of Chrysalis was to take a commercially driven approach
to the use of public funds in the delivery of regeneration and economic
development. It was formed under the Joint European Support for Sustainable
Investment in City Areas (JESSICA) initiative, which allows ERDF and match
funding to be invested via Urban Development Funds (UDFs) in urban projects
using loans, equity and/or guarantees. This initiative provided the LCR with £28m
ERDF funds to be invested over 10 years and was subsequently increased to £35m
through Homes and Communities Agency funding.

3.2

In 2013, the European Investment Bank (EIB) appointed PwC to undertake two ExAnte assessments for two new UDFs for the 2014-2020 investment period for the
North West and LCR, called at that time Chrysalis Fund II and a Low Carbon
Investment Fund. This was included in the LEP led ‘EU Structural and Investment
Funds Strategy 2014-2020’. However, after completing the report, the Combined
Authority did not progress in the establishment of the proposed UDF.

3.3

The Combined Authority subsequently considered it appropriate to work towards the
establishment of the proposed UDF. In March 2018, PwC presented the ‘Chrysalis
Fund: 2014-2020 Ex Ante Assessment Update’ updating evidence that strongly
supported the case and necessitates a complementary financial instrument to
unlock development opportunities across the LCR. The proposed UDF will comprise
£25m of ERDF funding from the MHCLG, a £1.4m contribution from the Combined
Authority (available from the 2017 novation of the Chrysalis Fund from Homes and
Communities Agency to Combined Authority ownership) and match funding on a
project-by-project basis. The application has now been reviewed by MHCLG and
progressed to further negotiation between MHCLG and the Combined Authority.
Therefore, acceptance of the grant award is now required to progress with the
signoff of the funding agreement and the operational establishment of the proposed
UDF.

3.4

It should be noted that this represents a Key Decision due to the scale of funding
and city region wide area of potential impact. A Key Decision Notice has been
prepared and published for the project.

Page 68

4

NEXT STEPS

4.1

To negotiate detailed terms of the Grant Funding Agreement and proceed with its
signoff, before 28 March 2019;

4.2

Procure the required Fund Advisor for the UDF, and

4.3

Take the appropriate operational measures to ensure the delivery of the UDF.

5

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Financial
The Combined Authority Treasurer has confirmed that the proposed match-funding
request of £1,400,000 can be accommodated as part of the use of novated funds of
the Chrysalis Fund novation (Advice Note – File Ref. 12056).

5.2

Human Resources
Due to the selected, in-house, route for the UDF its delivery will be supported with
two dedicated staff, a full time Fund Manager and a part time Fund advisor. These
roles will be partially funded, up to the maximum eligible costs, by the ERDF
resources received. The positions will be filled by an internal recruitment process. If
the outcome of this is not satisfactory, the recruitment shall be made external.
The Investment Team and Legal Team will lead the negotiation of the Grant
Funding Agreement and the Programme Management Office and Finance Team will
have responsibility for managing the delivery of the UDF’s investments once the
project is live.

5.3

Physical Assets
There is no specific requirement for physical assets. The fund will perform its
operations in the existing Combined Authority facilities.

5.4

Information Technology
The approval of funding will not give rise to Information Technology issues.

6

RISKS AND MITIGATION

6.1

The Funding Agreement between the Combined Authority and MHCLG will seek to
ensure, to the extent achievable, that risk to the Combined Authority is managed,
including in relation to State Aid.

6.2

Individual project risks are identified and considered as part of the application
evaluation process and the proposed Investment Strategy. The Fund Manager with
support from the Programme Management Office and Finance Teams will be
responsible for ensuring that during delivery risks are understood and that the UDF
and its beneficiaries takes necessary steps to mitigate these.

Page 69

7

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Equality and Diversity implications are considered as part of the application process
and relevant considerations are set out in the Full Application.

8

COMMUNICATION ISSUES

8.1

All projects approved by the UDF will be subject to the Combined Authority and
ERDF’s branding guidelines and publicity requirements placed upon them as part of
the Funding Agreement. In addition the Combined Authority will, through its adopted
communication protocols, publicise the award of funding to the projects and the
associated envisaged outcomes.

9

CONCLUSION

9.1

This report updates the Combined Authority as set out in paragraph 1.1(c) above
and seeks authority as set out in paragraph 2.1 above.

MARK BOUSFIELD
Director of Commercial Development and Investment
COUNCILLOR PHIL DAVIES
Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation

Contact Officer:
Mark Bousfield, Director of Commercial Development and Investment (0151 330 1101)
Appendices:
None
Background Documents:
Combined Authority Paper for the UDF – March 2018

Page 70

Agenda Item 10
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined
Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authority/Authorities Affected:

All

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING AND
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT, APPRENTICESHIPS AND
SKILLS
ADULT EDUCATION BUDGET ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report provides an assurance framework for the Adult Education Budget,
utilising the recently updated Strategic Investment Fund (SIF) assurance framework
as an appropriate and comparable format. The Adult Education Budget will be
devolved to the Liverpool City Region from 1 August 2019, and the Combined
Authority intends to use this assurance framework in implementing delivery for the
2019/20 academic year.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority approve the
Adult Education Budget assurance framework as detailed in Appendix One.

3

BACKGROUND

3.1

Devolution of the Adult Education Budget (AEB) was agreed in Liverpool City
Region’s Devolution Agreement of November 2015. The Adult Education Functions
Order 2018 Order details those adult education functions being transferred from the
Secretary of State for Education to the Combined Authority. Through this transfer
of functions, the Combined Authority will take on responsibility for the AEB from 1
August 2019 to make sure learners, aged 19 and over, eligible for funding from that
budget, who reside in the Liverpool City Region, have appropriate education and
training.

3.2

The Department for Education (DfE) informed the Combined Authority on 31
January 2019 that the Liverpool City Region AEB Budget for the period 1 August
2019 to 31 July 2020 is £51,380.231. The methodology used by DfE to calculate
this budget is 3.99% of the national AEB participation budget based on 2017/18
learners in the Liverpool City Region.

Page 71

3.3

Part of the readiness conditions that the Combined Authority was required to meet
in order to receive the devolved AEB funding from the Secretary of State requires
the adoption of an assurance framework. The Combined Authority were able to
demonstrate that similar frameworks had been adopted in the deployment of funds,
and confirmed the intention to adopt one for the AEB prior to the 2019/20 academic
year.

3.4

This AEB assurance framework confirms the Combined Authority approach to the
following key areas:




Combined Governance;
Accountable and Transparent Decision Making; and
Monitoring and Evaluation.

3.5

In addition the assurance framework outlines the dual approach to commissioning
the devolved AEB, that involves a combination of grant funded negotiations with
Liverpool City Region based Further Education Colleges and Local Authorities, and
a procurement exercise for all other providers of services in line with the Public
Contract Regulations 2015 (Light Touch Regime).

3.6

It provides confirmation of the decision-making process regarding funding
allocations, the approach to performance management, financial due diligence with
providers, and the roles and responsibilities within the Combined Authority. The
assurance framework also describes how any in year changes to funding will be
made and the process for this.

4

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial
The assurance framework clarifies areas of responsibility for Combined Authority
officers in managing the AEB resources to be distributed via grants or contracts for
services.

4.2

Human Resources
There are no direct Human Resources implications arising from the implementation
of the recommendations in this report.

4.3

Physical Assets
There are no direct Physical Assets implications arising from the implementation of
the recommendations in this report.

4.4

Information Technology
There are no direct Information Technology implications arising from the
implementation of the recommendations in this report.

Page 72

5

RISKS AND MITIGATION

5.1

This assurance framework establishes the Combined Authority’s approach to
complying with HM Government’s requirements in managing the devolved AEB
funding. It provides clear guidance to Combined Authority Officers and reduces the
risk of non-compliance.

5.2

The framework refers to the overarching Combined Authority governance structure
and decision-making methodology as well as the arrangements specific to AEB,
such as the role of the AEB Project Board. The AEB Project Board comprises
senior and statutory Combined Authority officers and is constituted for its ability to
review policy, monitor performance and maintain Combined Authority governance
standards.

5.3

The Combined Authority is following the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Light
Touch Regime) in relation to the formal procurement exercise to allocate AEB
funding for contracts for services. Knowsley Council is providing procurement
expertise and capacity to support the Combined Authority with this and to ensure
compliance with the Regulations. This collaborative approach will mitigate any risks
associated with the procurement exercise.

5.4

The Combined Authority’s failure to comply with the assurance framework could
result in complaints, lobbying or legal challenge, and could limit HM Government’s
willingness in future to devolve funding to the Combined Authority. In response to
this risk, the Combined Authority will induct and train all AEB team members and
supporting staff on compliance with its requirements; particularly around the
ongoing performance management of contracts and grants for AEB provision. This
process will be monitored through the AEB Project Board and internal audit; and
report performance to the Combined Authority in its regular AEB submissions.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The AEB aims to improve opportunities for people who are in need of new skills.
Many potential AEB learners also have protected characteristics. The AEB
commissioning proposals will support a range of under-represented groups,
particularly the most disadvantaged residents, including those without basic skills,
unemployed people, over 50s, single parents, black and minority ethnic groups and
disabled people

7

COMMUNICATION ISSUES

7.1

There are no communication issues arising from implications arising from the
implementation of the recommendations in this report.

8

CONCLUSION

8.1

The AEB assurance framework closely fits the existing assurance framework for
Strategic Investment Funds, and takes account of the Combined Authority’s

Page 73

governance and decision-making, structures and operations. The Combined
Authority will behave pro-actively to comply with its provisions.

KIRSTY PEARCE
Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning
COUNCILLOR MAHER
Portfolio Holder for Education, Employment, Apprenticeships and Skills

Contact Officer(s):
Sue Jarvis, Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (0151 330 1225)
Appendices:
Appendix One – Liverpool City Region Combined Authority AEB Assurance Framework
2019

Page 74

Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority

Adult Education Budget
Assurance Framework

January 2019

Version 0.3 (DRAFT)

Page 75

Contents
1. Introduction
1.1

About this document

1.2

Background

1.3

Scope of the Assurance Framework

1.4

Annual Framework Reviews

2. Governance
2.1

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Governance

2.2

Adult Education Functions

2.3

Combined Authority Portfolios

2.4

Accountable Body Role and Financial Management

2.5

Conflicts of Interest and Transparency

2.6

Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct

3. Accountable and Transparent Decision Making
3.1

Liverpool City Region Skills Strategy

3.2

Commissioning Approach

3.3

Grant Funding Agreement Negotiation and Award

3.4

Procurement of Contracts for Services

3.5

Subcontracting

3.6

Appraisal Process

3.7

Financial Due Diligence

3.8

Risk Management

3.9

Adult Education Budget Decision Making

3.10

Allocation Approval Process and Change Control of Allocations in Year

3.11

Role of the Adult Education Budget Team

3.12

Performance Management

3.13

Stakeholder Engagement

Page2 76

4. Monitoring and Evaluation
4.1

Overview

4.2

Effective Monitoring and Evaluation

4.3

Performance Management

4.4

Partnership Arrangements and Co-dependencies

4.5

Annual Assurance Framework Review

4.6

Summary of Key Assurance Requirements

Annex 1: Adult Education Budget DfE Guidelines for Assurances

Page
3 77

1.

Introduction

1.1

About this document

This assurance framework applies to funds commissioned by the Combined Authority
through the devolved Adult Education Budget (AEB). The commissioning of AEB will
involve a combination of plan-led grant funding and procured provision in accordance
with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Light Touch Regime) for a contract for
services.
This assurance framework is designed to meet the requirements of the AEB readiness
conditions for Combined Authorities set by the Department for Education (DfE). It will
provide the Departmental Accounting Officers and Parliament with information about the
systems and processes the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (the “Combined
Authority”), as the accountable decision-making authority, has in place to manage
effectively the process and risks associated with the allocation of devolved funding.
This document should be read in conjunction with the Liverpool City Region Skills
Strategy1 2018-2023 (the “Skills Strategy”). The Skills Strategy provides the outcomes,
key actions, and measures that underpin the Combined Authority‟s approach to
investing public funds to meet the skills needs of Liverpool City Region residents and
the Combined Authority Constitution (the “Constitution”) published in May 2018, which
provides inter alia the governance arrangements in place for the Combined Authority.
This document is divided into four sections:





1.2

Section 1: Describes the context, scope and purpose of the Assurance
Framework;
Section 2: Describes governance structures of the Combined Authority
Section 3: Sets out the AEB commissioning approach, transparency mechanisms
and decision making procedures for funding and ongoing management; and
Section 4: Outlines the approach to monitoring and evaluation.

Background

Liverpool City Region is one of only a few City Regions to have secured a devolution
agreement with government, meaning decision making and resources around a number
of key priorities are managed locally. Devolution of the AEB was agreed in the 2015
devolution agreement2 and the details of the adult education functions in the
Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 to be transferred from the
1
2

http://www.lcrskillsforgrowth.org.uk/our-work/skills-for-growth
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/liverpool-devolution-deal

Page4 78

Secretary of State for Education to Liverpool City Region Combined Authority set out in
the Adult Education Functions Order 2018 HERE.
Through this transfer of functions, the Combined Authority will take on responsibility for
the AEB from 1 August 2019 to make sure learners, aged 19 and over, eligible for
funding from that budget, who reside in the Liverpool City Region, have appropriate
education and training. The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) will retain
responsibility for funding residents outside of devolved areas.
The principle purpose of the AEB is “to engage adults and provide them with the skills
and learning needed for work, an apprenticeship or further learning”. AEB allows adults
aged 19 and over to engage in learning which supports wider economic and social
priorities. It enables adults to achieve qualifications, as well as tailored programmes of
learning that do not need to include a qualification for those furthest from learning or
employment. This includes the community learning provided by constituent Councils,
provision within Further Education Colleges and via Independent Training Providers.
The AEB also encompasses a range of statutory entitlements for learners, including an
entitlement to fully funded provision for basic English and maths qualifications and, for
those aged between 19 and 23, a fully funded entitlement to a first full level 2 and 3
qualifications. From 2020, a further national entitlement to basic and essential digital
skills will come into operation.

1.3

Scope of the Assurance Framework

The Combined Authority has already established a Strategic Investment Fund through
which it administers the single pot allocation of funding from HM Government alongside
other local and national funding sources. This is subject to its own assurance
framework.
This assurance framework is for the AEB, which consists of:




1.4

£51 million per annum from 1 August 2019;
A single revenue stream that brings together adult further education (all provision
for those aged 19 years and over with the exception of Apprenticeships and
Traineeships), community learning and discretionary learner support; and
A guarantee to fund statutory learner entitlements relating to English, maths and
(from August 2020/21) digital skills, as well as a first Level 2 qualification and
Level 3 for those aged 19 to 23 years.

Annual Framework Reviews

Page
5 79

The Combined Authority will review this framework annually to examine the potential for
improvements in standards, process and delivery practice. Changes may also be
necessary to take account of any changes within the Combined Authority.

Page6 80

2.

Governance and Decision Making

2.1

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Governance

2.1.1 Membership and structure
Liverpool city Region Combined Authority is a Mayoral Combined Authority whose
membership comprises the Liverpool City Region Metro Mayor (“LCR Mayor”), the five
Local Authority leaders of Halton, Knowsley, Sefton, St Helens and Wirral Councils, the
elected Mayor of Liverpool City Council and the Chair of the Local Enterprise
Partnership. Warrington and West Lancashire Borough Councils are Associate
Members and there are two co-opted Members in the Merseyside Police and Crime
Commissioner and the Chair of the Transport Committee. The November 2015
Devolution Agreement 3 together with the March 2016 updated agreement4, details the
Combined Authority‟s remit and authority.
The Combined Authority‟s governance structure is shown in the diagram below:

Beneath the Board, the Combined Authority governs through a number of Committees,
each with their own remit. Each Committee operates to ensure effective management
and oversight of delivery against the Combined Authority‟s obligations and objectives.
2.1.2 Committees
Further detail on the scope of each committee can be read in Section 3 of the
Constitution.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Exists to achieve greater public accountability over all Combined Authority decisions
made and services delivered to the whole Liverpool City Region. The Committee can
review and/or scrutinise decisions made by the Combined Authority or the Mayor and
make recommendations/reports to the Combined Authority and/or Mayor. Annually it
3
4

https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/Liverpool_devolution_deal-DEVO.pdf
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/devolution/

Page
7 81

publishes its work plan, which indicates how it will exercise its powers. It may choose to
scrutinise the AEB.
Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Makes recommendations to the Board on Combined Authority staffing, remuneration,
terms and conditions.
Audit and Governance Committee
Provides assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework (including the
Annual Governance Statement) promotes and maintains high standards of conduct by
Combined Authority Members. The Section 73 Officer is responsible for reporting on
the financial management and assurance of the AEB to the Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority Audit Committee through the delivery and outturn of the annual
internal audit plan and published accounts.

2.2

Adult Education Functions

The Adult Education Functions Order 2018 details the adult education functions in the
Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 being transferred from the
Secretary of State for Education to the Combined Authority. Through this transfer of
functions, the Combined Authority will take on responsibility for the AEB from 1 August
2019 to make sure learners, aged 19 and over, eligible for funding from that budget,
who reside in the Liverpool City Region, have appropriate education and training.
These functions are:




Section 86 (education and training for persons aged 19 or over and others
subject to adult detention);
Section 87 (learning aims for persons aged 19 or over: provision of facilities); and
Section 88 (learning aims for persons aged 19 or over: payment of tuition fees)

The order also provides for the transfer of the Secretary of State functions under section
90 of the 2009 Act, which relate to the encouragement of education and training for
persons aged 19 or over, and section 100(1) of the 2009 Act, which relates to the
provision of financial resources. These functions are exercisable by the Combined
Authority concurrently with the Secretary of State.
The order contains conditions on the exercise of the transferred functions, namely that
in addition to the requirement to have regard to the guidance, that the Combined
Authority must adopt rules of eligibility for awards by an institution to which it makes
grants, loans or other payments financial resources under section 100 of the 2009 Act in
accordance with any direction given by the Secretary of State.

Page8 82

The Combined Authority will also need to continue to secure provision of free study for
learners who meet certain conditions for study for specified qualifications provided as a
result of Statutory Entitlements.
The following explanatory note accompanied the Adult Education Functions Order 2018
and provides a description of the key components:

“This Order provides for the conferral of certain adult education functions of the
Secretary of State under the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009
(“the 2009 Act”) on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority („the Combined
Authority‟).
Article 1 of the Order provides for coming into force on the day after the day the Order
is made; and for Part 2 to apply only in relation to the provision of education or training
in an academic year beginning on or after 1st August 2019. This enables the
Combined Authority to carry out the functions in relation to the 2019/20 academic year
from the day the Order comes into force.
Article 3 of the Order provides for the transfer to the Combined Authority of adult
education functions under section 86 to 88 of the 2009 Act, with the exception of such
functions relating to apprenticeships training, persons subject to adult detention or any
power to make regulations or orders. The transferred functions will be exercisable by
the Combined Authority instead of by the Secretary of State in relation to the area of
the Combined Authority.
Article 4 also provides for the functions of the Secretary of State under section 90 of
the 2009 Act, which relate to the encouragement of education and training for persons
aged 19 or over, and under section 100(1) of that Act, which relate to the provision of
financial resources, to be exercisable by the Combined Authority in relation to the
area. The functions will be exercisable by the Combined Authority concurrently with
the Secretary of State.
Article 5 sets conditions on the exercise of the functions mentioned in Articles 3 and 4.
The Combined Authority must adopt rules of eligibility for awards by an institution to
which it makes grants, loans or other payments under section 100 of the 2009 Act in
accordance with any direction given by the Secretary of State. In addition, in
exercising the transferred functions, the Combined Authority must have regard to
guidance issued by the Secretary of State (as amended from time to time or replaced
by a subsequent document).
Article 6 and the Schedule to the Order apply certain provisions of the 2009 Act with
modifications to the Combined Authority for the purpose of the Combined Authority
exercising the functions conferred on it by articles 3 and 4”.

Page
9 83

Page
1084

Combined Authority Portfolios

2.3

The Liverpool City Region Mayor has divided the Combined Authority‟s key priorities
and competencies into discrete portfolios and allocated a Combined Authority member
to lead each portfolio with support from a deputy portfolio holder and nominated senior
officer. The portfolio holder is typically a local authority leader, the deputy portfolio
holder is a councillor and the officer is a senior Combined Authority officer. This
approach is designed to balance democratic accountability with delivery capacity. The
portfolios are:











Business Growth and Brexit;
Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation;
Energy and Renewables;
Culture, Tourism and the Visitor Economy;
Public Service Reform and Further Devolution;
Education, Employment, Apprenticeships and Skills;
Housing and Spatial Planning;
Policy and Resources, Strategy and Delivery;
Transport and Air Quality; and
Criminal Justice.

AEB activity forms a base component of the „Education, Employment, Apprenticeships
and Skills‟ portfolio.

2.4

Accountable Body Role and Financial Management

The Combined Authority acts as the accountable body for the devolved AEB.
Accountable bodies are responsible for the proper administration and financial probity of
external funds received. They are legally constituted bodies with a statutory role. The
accountable body must ensure the effective use of public money and have responsibility
for the proper administration of funding received and its expenditure.
The Order that established the LCRCA in 2014 states that the functions of the
constituent Councils in relation to economic development and regeneration are
exercisable in reliance on the general power of competence as set out in Section 1 of
the Localism Act 2011. It is under this general power that the Combined Authority
discharges its functions as an accountable body. The Combined Authority ensures that
appropriate governance and accountability arrangements are established and followed
to meet the responsibilities of the Combined Authority in respect of its accountable body
role for the proper administration and use of external funding.
Merseytravel was appointed as the Executive body of the Authority for the purposes of
Part 5 of the Local Transport Act 2008 and Part 6 of the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Act 2009.

Page
11 85

As accountable body, the Combined Authority will ensure that the AEB is managed in a
manner that is lawful, transparent, evidence-based, consistent and proportionate. It is
responsible for overseeing policy, the prioritisation of funding, ensuring value for money,
evaluating performance and managing risk. LCRCA will:




Hold the AEB funds and make payments in accordance with the decisions of the
Combined Authority/Mayor;
Record and maintain the official record of proceedings relating to decisions made
on funding priorities; and
Account for AEB funds in such a way that they will be separately identifiable.

The Combined Authority‟s S73 Officer, the Director of Corporate Services, is ultimately
accountable for the AEB‟s financial management including budgeting and reporting of
performance. The Combined Authority discharges this responsibility with reference to
the finance team, the internal audit team and programme management office, which
form part of the directorate for corporate services.
The assurance framework and AEB will be managed in accordance with the usual Local
Authority checks and balances, including for example those set out in the Local
Government Fiscal Framework and the Local Government Accountability System
Statement.

2.5

Conflicts of Interest and Transparency

The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority is committed to being open, transparent
and accountable and has a publication scheme providing information about the
Authority‟s finances, performance and decision making, which covers:








What the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority is and what it does;
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority spending;
Priorities and performance;
How the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority makes decisions;
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority policies and procedures;
Lists and registers; and
The services offered by the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.

Team members, whether in the AEB Team or elsewhere within Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority, have a responsibility to report conflicts of interest as defined in the
Officers Code of Conduct set out in the Constitution, Part 6, and Section B.
Part 6, Section A details the Members Code of Conduct. Both these codes of conduct
require declaration of interest whether personal or financial and they are not limited to
the individual employee but to their wider relationships.

Page
1286

2.6

Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct

Through Merseytravel the Combined Authority has the benefit of the following policies:








3.

Confidential reporting (whistleblowing);
Complaints (the AEB will also have an additional provider and learner specific
complaints policy);
Gifts and hospitality;
Code of conduct for Officers and Members;
Freedom of Information;
Data Protection; and
Declaration of interests.

Accountable and Transparent Decision Making

This section describes the AEB commissioning process, explains the approach to
transparent decision making and offers guidance on the methodology the Combined
Authority adopts, and the information it requires, when progressing funding applications.
3.1

Liverpool City Region Skills Strategy

The Liverpool City Region Skills Strategy (2018-2023) vision is that in five years the
Liverpool City Region will have:
“An outstanding and effective skills system that meets the needs of employers,
individuals of all ages and communities and drives high aspirations and attainment, to
create a truly global and competitive City Region at the heart of the Northern
Powerhouse”
Within our Skills Strategy vision, devolution of the AEB will support Liverpool City
Region‟s ambitions for its residents and businesses and our emerging Local Industrial
Strategy. This includes delivering the positive outcomes necessary to narrow gaps for
key cohorts, such as the need for greater engagement of residents with low level skills,
those aged over 50, reducing the minority ethnic and disability employment gaps and
targeting those who are economically inactive or unemployed in order to meet the skills
required by employers.
The Combined Authority is also mindful of the need to maintain learner choice whilst
ensuring the provider base remains stable alongside delivering statutory learning
entitlements. This needs to be balanced with the successful engagement and
achievement of learners across the Liverpool City Region, encouraging progression and
delivering successful outcomes.

Page
13 87

3.2

Commissioning Approach

The Combined Authority will adopt a dual approach to commissioning5 the devolved
AEB. This will involve a combination of grant funding agreements and procured
contracts for services. The key considerations for each approach are set out below:
The Combined Authority establishes grant funding agreements with Further Education
(FE) Colleges based in Liverpool City Region and Liverpool City Region Local
Authorities which currently deliver AEB funded provision, on the grounds that:







They form part of Liverpool City Region‟s state-maintained system of public
education and its associated asset base and infrastructure which is funded wholly, or
mainly, from the public purse and which has Liverpool City Region residents and
„place‟ as the primary focus of their activity;
These providers cannot choose not to engage with policy changes, nor can they
substantially shift their core business focus or suddenly cease operating; the FE
regulatory framework and FE insolvency regime recognise the particular
position/status of colleges and provides additional protection for learners which does
not apply to learners in other institutions;
A Memorandum of Understanding between DfE and the Combined Authority will
explicitly require the Combined Authority to “minimise the risk of insolvency of any
further education institution in the CA area”; and
They will be subject to stronger performance management arrangements than
currently set out via the ESFA.

All other providers that wish to deliver Combined Authority funded provision to Liverpool
City Region residents from 2019/20 will be required to participate in a competitive
tender, in accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Light Touch Regime)
for a contract for services. Whilst we do not want to limit learner choice, or exclude
valuable specialist providers and niche provision from the market, it would be difficult for
the Combined Authority to work with the estimated provider base of 220 (based on
2016/17 figures) in its entirety from an efficiency perspective. Managing a high number
of contracts of this order would not provide value for money from public funding.
For 2019/20, the Combined Authority has negotiated access and use of the current
national funding rates for qualifications and learning aims. The Combined Authority has
the ability through devolution to change these funding rates to better meet local
priorities. Managed change over time will enable short to medium term continuity of
funding and certainty for providers.
This commissioning approach is underpinned by a clear set of delivery principles
designed to convey clarity, transparency and quality and provide the basis on which

5

For the purposes of the AEB, the term „commissioning‟ relates to the processes by which AEB funded
provision will be planned, purchased, managed and monitored.

Page
1488

healthy dialogue and challenge can exist between the Combined Authority (as
Commissioner) and providers. These are:







Local skills investment priorities will be aligned to Skills Strategy outcomes;
The Combined Authority will align, where possible, with national policy on funding
eligibilities, rates and entitlements and will seek to improve or enhance these in
support of local priorities as appropriate;
The Combined Authority will encourage new market developments to ensure there is
a mixed economy of commissioned services and innovation that strengthens the
local provider base and responds to needs and opportunities;
Other skills funding decisions will be considered alongside the AEB e.g. Skills
Capital;
Subcontracting will be agreed where this adds value to the mix and balance of
provision locally and enriches the learning offer; and
Allocations and details of commissioned provision will be openly published to ensure
transparency of process.

With these principles in mind, the Combined Authority wishes to ensure that the AEB
market in Liverpool City Region is open to high quality providers of all kinds (including
partnerships/alliances of providers and their supply chains). This will allow them to
provide the best value and impact for Liverpool City Region residents through alignment
with the wider skills and employment system.
3.3

Grant Funding Agreement Negotiation and Award

The Combined Authority will open a negotiated process with indigenous Further
Education Colleges and Local Authorities with regards to the scale and balance of
provision that will continue to deliver the legal entitlements whilst offering a range of
learning opportunities that take account of local priorities and links with other initiatives
such as Skills Capital.
These grant funded providers will be asked to submit delivery plans for 2019/20 as part
of the allocations process, setting out their curriculum offer, including how this meets the
Liverpool City Region‟s identified skills priorities, delivery models etc.
3.4

Procurement and Contracts for Services

Up to £17m (subject to confirmation of the overall Adult Education Budget for the
Liverpool City Region in 2019/20) is available to competitively tender for AEB contracts
using the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 „Light Touch Regime‟ (for education and
training services). This approach, operated alongside the negotiated grant funding
approach with indigenous Colleges and Local Authorities, minimises risk to continuity of
provision for learners in the short term, whilst offering providers an opportunity to apply
for funding. It also provides the opportunity to assess provider capability and capacity
to deliver the Combined Authority‟s skills priorities.

Page
15 89

3.5

Subcontracting

Subcontracting has an important role to play in the delivery of the AEB. Subcontractors
can help widen participation amongst niche groups that would otherwise be hard to
reach. Subcontracting also provides an entry point to funding for smaller voluntary and
community sector and niche providers, where they may not otherwise be able to meet
the minimum contract value.
The fees charged by lead providers to those they subcontract with should be
transparent. Fees should be proportionate to the services offered by the lead provider,
recognising there may be a sliding scale for varying levels of support for managing the
subcontract relationship and associated risks, data processing, access to internal audit
support, quality assurance and improvement, classroom observations and accreditation
support.
Any subcontracting proposals will be reviewed by the Combined Authority both as part
of the negotiated grants discussions and provider responses to the tendered provision.
The Combined Authority will also monitor the value for money and quality of such
provision as part of our approach to performance management.
All subcontracts must be agreed with the Combined Authority prior to any learning
commencing as part of lead provider due diligence arrangements. This will enable the
Combined Authority to understand the learning it funds and better ensure the level of
funding spent on subcontract support infrastructure is proportionate to costs.
3.6

Appraisal Process

For procured activity, the Combined Authority has adopted a two stage process
consisting of a standard Selection Questionnaire (SQ) followed by an Invitation to
Tender (ITT) for those providers who successfully pass the SQ stage.
The SQ stage is designed to identify those providers that successfully meet minimum
standards. The second stage – the ITT – is by invitation only to those that pass the SQ
stage and will delve more rigorously into a number of delivery areas.
All bids received at the ITT stage will be subject to an in depth appraisal, using pre
published criteria to ensure the process is open and transparent. Bids will be assessed
on quality not price, as the Combined Authority will be adopting the national funding
calculation for learning aims detailed on the national Learning Aims Reference Service
in the 2019/20 academic year.
Each bid question will be appraised independently twice and moderated, to ensure the
process is robust and open to scrutiny. The criteria and weightings applied to each
question will be published at bidding stage as required by the Public Contract
Regulations 2015.

Page
1690

3.7

Financial Due Diligence

An important part of the contract award process will take account of the financial status
of the bidding organisation to ensure that any contract offer is appropriate and
deliverable. These are clearly described in the Procurement process in advance of
bidding.
The Combined Authority will adopt a financial due diligence process that will take
account of the financial status of the organisation to better understand the scale and
reliance any devolved AEB funding would provide to providers.
Provision subsequently procured through contracts for services will be paid in arrears
based on actual performance, therefore it is recognised that this methodology provides
a lower financial risk and this will be balanced with the stability of provision for learners.
Financial monitoring and management of all institutions and providers in receipt of AEB
funding will be an on-going process throughout the academic year through provider
performance and delivery management.
3.8

Risk Management

The AEB Project Director is the senior officer responsible for the propriety and
performance of AEB projects and portfolio. The AEB Project Board is responsible for the
review of the AEB risk register. The AEB Commissioning Team will make risk integral to
its structuring and presentation of projects, maintaining its own view of risk. Risk
mitigation measures will be agreed with providers prior to approval of projects where
appropriate. When a project is in delivery, the Combined Authority will require the risk
log to be maintained, regularly reviewed and reported on. The internal Programme
Management Office (PMO), alongside Internal Audit, will regularly report on risk and
performance to the Audit and Governance Committee.
3.9

Adult Education Budget Decision Making

This section describes the formal decision making process for the devolved AEB and
the bodies involved, including the role of the City Region‟s Employment and Skills
Board, AEB, AEB Project Board and the Combined Authority. It covers the decision
making process for contract for services, negotiations with grant funded providers and
any subsequent in-year funding changes affecting Colleges, Local Authorities and
Providers.
AEB funding allocations are a Combined Authority key decision based on the criteria
that learners could be from more than one ward and/or local authority area for any
provider.
Employment and Skills Board

Page
17 91

The Employment and Skills Board (ESB) is the advisory body for employment and skills
in the Liverpool City Region, commissioned by both the Combined Authority and the
Local Enterprise Partnership. The role of the ESB is to help to identify the priorities for
employment and skills delivery and it undertakes the function of the Skills Advisory
Panel (SAP) for the Liverpool City Region. Membership of the ESB is available at the
link below.
ESB Board Members
Key roles of the ESB are to advise on the allocation of funding (e.g. skills capital), and
to commission activities (e.g. relevant aspects of the 2014-2020 European Programme).
To ensure against any conflicts of interest of members, a transparent Declaration of
Interests process is in place. ESB members are required to sign-up to a “Code of
Conduct” and absent themselves from discussions on particular issues if a conflict of
interest exists. The role of the SAP is to understand current and future skills needs and
labour market challenges in their local area. This can help to shape commissioning
undertaken by the Combined Authority and is therefore of relevance to the devolved
Adult Education Budget.
Full Terms of Reference for the ESB are available on request.
AEB Project Board
The AEB Project Board comprises senior and statutory Combined Authority officers.
The Board is constituted for its ability to meet regularly, review policy, monitor
performance and maintain Combined Authority governance standards. Composition is
as follows (including other deputies as required):
Member
Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning
Director of Corporate Services
Chief Legal Officer
Head of Finance
Head of Policy Coordination
Head of PMO

Role on Board
Full Member
Full Member
Full Member
Full Member
Observer
Observer

The Project Board acts as executive board with responsibility for reviewing: AEB
investment policy, commissioning, funding policy and performance management rules,
and recommendations of the AEB Commissioning Panel relating to AEB procurement.
The Project Board will also receive regular monitoring, evaluation and review reports
regarding the delivery of the AEB from 1 August 2019/20.
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority

Page
1892

The Combined Authority decides on all AEB (and other funding) priorities. All aspects of
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority and its procedures are subject to the core
principles of transparency and good governance.
The Authority meets frequently in a public forum. The dates of the Authority and
committee meetings are set annually in advance and published on the website – see
link below. For each meeting, the Agenda and papers are published in advance on the
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority website and historical packs are also
available. Openly publishing all the core documents enables the Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority to inform the public of key decisions and future strategic issues.
The Authority debates key decisions to ensure that matters presented to the public
reflect the combined views of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority members.
The Liverpool City Region Mayor chairs the Combined Authority in which each member
has one vote. AEB spending proposals are approved or rejected by simple majority,
subject to that majority including the vote of the Liverpool City Region Mayor, unless
otherwise set out in legislation, or specifically delegated through the Constitution.
Proposals for decisions by the Combined Authority may be put forward by the Liverpool
City Region Mayor or any Combined Authority member.
The Liverpool City Region Mayor is required to consult the Combined Authority
members on key strategies, and the Combined Authority may reject these proposals if
two thirds of the constituent council members agree to do so. The Combined Authority
also examines the Mayor‟s spending plans and is able to amend these plans, again, if
two-thirds of the constituent council members agree.
Combined Authority meetings are open to members of the public. Members of the
public can ask questions of the Mayor and Leaders in an open forum. Additionally, the
public can engage with the Mayor through the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority website: Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Governance.
3.10

Allocation Approval Process and Change Control of Allocations in Year

The AEB funding allocation process for the 2019/20 academic year will involve the
following:





The AEB Commissioning Panel and Grant Funding Panel (see below) will
recommend funding allocations to the AEB Project Board;
The AEB Project Board will action the AEB Commissioning Team to draft a AEB
2019/2020 allocations report for consideration by the Combined Authority;
Subject to approval of AEB allocations by the Combined Authority, the AEB Team, in
conjunction with Procurement/Legal services, will prepare a contract for agreement
by the individual providers;
A scheme of delegation will be sought for the AEB Project Board to increase or
decrease provider allocations at performance review points within the academic
year;

Page
19 93




The scheme of delegation will allow the AEB Project Board to change individual
provider allocations, for decisions under £0.5m during the academic year; and
For changes above £0.5m, the Project Board will be responsible for recommending
a decision which will go to the Combined Authority for final approval and
endorsement.

Page
2094

AEB Commissioning Panel
The Commissioning Panel will scrutinise individual tender responses received through
procurement and take account of the project appraisal results and financial due
diligence undertaken.
The Commissioning Panel will comprise Combined Authority officers with the
appropriate mix of knowledge and technical expertise to assess tender response
questions against strategic priorities, commissioning principles and scoring criteria. It
will consist of members of the AEB Commissioning Team, including the Project Director,
with support from Legal, Procurement and Finance officers as appropriate.
The responsibilities of the Commissioning Panel will be to:





Consider all funding applications received through procurement using an open,
objective, transparent and equitable process;
Make recommendations on the value of contracts for services taking into account
capacity and capability, fit with the Skills Strategy, any previous performance (if
appropriate), financial due diligence and formal appraisal results;
Monitor, evaluate and review the performance of providers in respect of delivery,
expenditure, learner aims and achievements and outputs/outcomes; and
Review growth applications and cases of mitigation for reconciliation at key
performance management points within the academic year.

The appraisal process for contracts for services will produce a prioritised list of
providers to be recommended for endorsement firstly by the AEB Project Board and
then members of the Combined Authority. The AEB Project Board and Combined
Authority will receive a formal written report of these recommendations based on
individual scores. A minuted resolution will be required to enable AEB funds to be
released by the Combined Authority.
Grant Funding Panel
The Grant Funding Panel will be responsible for negotiating plan-led grant funding
agreements with indigenous Colleges and Local Authorities in line with the approach
agreed in the Combined Authority paper in October 2018.
The Grant Funding Panel will comprise Combined Authority officers with the appropriate
mix of knowledge and technical expertise to lead discussions with strategic bodies to
negotiate an appropriate mix and balance of provision to ensure the needs of learners
and employers are met.
The responsibilities of the Grant Funding Panel are to:

Page
21 95






Consider all grant funding plans submitted, using an open, objective, transparent
and equitable process to ensure the AEB learning availability has sufficient
coverage taking into account factors such as geography, subject area and level;
Make recommendations on the value of contracts taking into account capacity
and capability, fit with the Skills Strategy, any previous performance (if
appropriate), and links to existing Skills Capital investments;
Monitor, evaluate and review the performance of providers in respect of delivery,
expenditure, learner aims and achievements and outputs/outcomes; and
Review growth applications and cases of mitigation for reconciliation at key
performance management points within the academic year.

The process for negotiating AEB grant funding will result in a funding recommendation
for each indigenous College and Local Authority in the Liverpool City Region. This will
require endorsement firstly by the AEB Project Board and then the Combined Authority.
The AEB Project Board and Combined Authority will receive a formal written report of
these recommendations. A minuted resolution will be required to enable AEB funds to
be released by the Combined Authority.
3.11

Role of the Adult Education Budget Commissioning Team

The AEB Team is part of the Policy and Strategic Commissioning directorate and is
responsible for the AEB‟s commissioning approach, operation, quality management and
strategic relationship management of providers. This includes managing the provider
grant funding agreements and contracts for services throughout their annual academic
year business cycle, from initial funding allocation through performance management,
mid-year assessment, end of academic year reconciliation and academic year closure.
The AEB Team combines experience of publicly funded learning and skills policy
development, commissioning, performance management and delivery alongside Local
Authority assurance and accountability experience. The team has been recruited not
only for its skills in managing learning and skills activity, but also in commissioning highquality learning.
The team receives support from the following Combined Authority sources:






Directorate of Policy and Strategic Commissioning, the Combined Authority‟s prime
policy making body, which collaborates on the alignment of AEB with other learning
and skills policy;
Finance, which manages the AEB as a discrete programme and provides
performance reporting and management insight on programme;
Legal, which supports at two levels: 1) transactional, with a lawyer assigned to
manage the external contracting documentation and to draft documents internally,
depending on availability and complexity; and 2) constitutional, to oversee
governance and compliance with and the Constitution; and
Internal audit, which has a critical role to play in providing independent verification of
financial performance and processes.

Page
2296

3.12

Performance Management

From 1 August 2019 the Combined Authority‟s AEB Commissioning Team will provide
regular reports on AEB activity and performance. These reports will highlight quality and
financial performance by provider and for the programme, key delivery risks to learners
and learning, issues and key milestone achievements and successes.
In compiling these reports, the AEB Team will seek performance information from
Colleges, Local Authorities and Providers.
3.13

Stakeholder Engagement

The Combined Authority will use its website to engage with the wider community and
will be used a platform for transparent sharing of the AEB commissioning processes
and objectives. Details of all AEB procurement calls, decisions and funding allocated
will be published online, in line with the Combined Authority‟s publication scheme and
the Local Government Transparency Code.
In addition, a joint MCAs/DfE communications brief is in place to ensure providers are
clear about nature of changes, the direction of travel and the need to engage locally. A
full communications approach for AEB was developed, this included market
engagement of providers, Colleges and constituent Councils prior to the launch of the
procurement process and publication of FAQs.
The LEP Sector Boards, Employment and Skills Board and Skills Commission will
continue to play a role in influencing skills provision in response to local employer needs
and willingness to co-invest in skills.
Providers will conduct learner surveys on further reforms and co-design as well as their
perceptions of their learning.
There will be consideration of how Adult Learners Week could provide a platform for a
concentrated marketing approach in partnership with Colleges and providers to promote
the benefits of the devolved AEB.

Page
23 97

4

Monitoring and Evaluation

4.1

Overview

The Combined Authority‟s approach to monitoring and managing performance is
outlined in the Funding and Performance Management rules document. Following
contract award, the responsibility for overseeing the successful implementation and
delivery of projects will rest with a team of Relationship Managers who will be supported
by additional team members, including programme support and data analysis.
Monitoring and evaluation (M&E) is a critical component of an effective performance
management regime. M&E quantifies and assesses the relative impacts and benefits of
a scheme or series of policy interventions, including how it was delivered and whether
the investment generated the intended benefits and delivered value for money. M&E
creates a feedback loop to inform future policy development, priorities and budgets.

4.2

Effective Monitoring and Evaluation

The Combined Authority is committed to implementing effective M&E so that it is able
to:
a) Provide local accountability to the public by demonstrating how devolved
funding is spent and the benefits achieved, and tracking progress against local
strategies and action plans (such as the Skills Strategy). As such, M&E will be
important to demonstrate the value and effectiveness of local decision-making
and to shape future priorities;
b) Comply with external scrutiny requirements i.e. to satisfy conditions of the
Devolution Deal. Specifically, M&E will be used to demonstrate local progress
and delivery to senior government officials and Ministers who are ultimately
accountable to parliament for devolved funds;
c) Understand which test and learn Pilots work and are effective, and justify
subsequent changes to funding rules or attract further funding. M&E will provide
a useful feedback loop and enable this to be communicated to relevant
stakeholders;
d) Develop an evidence base for input into future approaches or adaptations to
funding rules. M&E will collect, collate and analyse data which can be utilised for
future work or sharing with other Combined Authorities.
The Combined Authority‟s Devolution Deal specifically includes a commitment between
Government and the Combined Authority to work together in developing an approach to
monitoring and evaluating the impact of the Deal. The Combined Authority last

Page
2498

reviewed its Devolution Deal Monitoring and Evaluation Plan in September 2018. This
sets out the approach of the Combined Authority and its partners in respect of the deal
as a whole, covering all of the governance changes, powers and new funding freedoms
that arise. This is to understand their effectiveness and impact, and to provide a
feedback loop to
inform future policy and strategy development.
The DfE has set out Monitoring and Evaluation guidelines for AEB, which include:





Consideration for the statutory entitlements detailed in the Orders;
The need to take into account how funding of the AEB will align to Strategic Skills
Plans and support the delivery of local economic objectives;
Arrangements for enabling effective and meaningful engagement of local (and
national) partners in proposed use and evaluation of the AEB; and
Robust monitoring and evaluation plans going forward, to help identify and
measure the impact of AEB spending in their area.

Annex 1 details the DfE and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government's AEB Guidelines for AEB Assurances.

4.3

Performance Management

Whilst the AEB is being devolved in a number of areas, formal relationships will be
developed and maintained with key agencies who remain interwoven in the
performance of AEB and related provision. These include:






Department for Education (DfE);
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA);
Office for Standards in Education, Children‟s Services and Skills (Ofsted);
The Further Education (FE) Commissioner; and
Other Mayoral Combined Authorities and Greater London Authority who take
responsibility for devolved AEB from 1 August 2019.

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority is developing a comprehensive provider
relationship management process that will enable the monitoring and review of provider
relationships and performance to ensure that the needs of learners in the City Region
are being met. Consideration will be given to a number of key factors, such as the
achievement of minimum performance levels, the actual provision being delivered, the
spend profiles and performance against these of providers. This process will build on
the rigour and responsiveness approach the ESFA have developed in the national
delivery of AEB.
Due regard will be given to the published national minimum standards that identify
achievement rates below acceptable levels.

Page
25 99

All providers funded by the AEB, regardless of the size, will be required to have a suite
of plans, policies and processes in place to ensure the effective monitoring and
management of their provision and any subcontracting arrangements.
All providers will have:





A maximum financial allocation from which they will earn funding to a set national
funding calculation;
An expected financial profile by proportion of their allocation spend which they will
be monitored on at set performance management points in the academic year;
Identified Equality and Diversity Impact Measures designed to narrow gaps in
achievement and progression for their provision; and
A monthly schedule for returning Individual Learner Records as monitoring and
funding claims where appropriate to the ESFA.

Within the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, a performance management
system will be used to collate, record and report on the progress of contract allocation
delivery. Where projects do not achieve their expected delivery at performance
management points their maximum allocation may be subject to reduction as outlined in
the Funding and Performance Management Rules 2019/20.
It is anticipated that devolved AEB will have two funding performance management
points as well as one final funding claim (October) required from grant-funded providers.
Further information is outlined in the Funding and Performance Management Rules
2019/20.

4.4

Partnership Arrangements and Co-dependencies

4.4.1 The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
The Combined Authority relationship with the ESFA will be critical for a number of
reasons. There is a legal requirement on providers to submit data to the Secretary of
State for all provision funded by DfE. Learner data will continue to be gathered from
providers in a national Individual Learner Record data system, currently the
Individualised Learner Record (ILR) that the ESFA will use to share data to support the
Combined Authority in the development and maintenance of the AEB functions
devolved. This will also be critical in calculating the contractual payments due to
providers through delivery of provision included in the national funding rates, which the
Combined Authority has negotiated access to, and use of, to pay providers for
achievement of qualifications and learning aims in the first instance.
Provider Quality and Financial Performance Intervention
The Combined Authority will hold regular keep in touch meetings with ESFA for
intervention purposes. The Combined Authority will formally intervene (potentially

Page26
100

alongside ESFA) when it has evidence of under-performance. This may include
escalating cases for assessment by the Further Education Commissioner.
Intervention may result from the following triggers of educational under-performance:



An overall inadequate (Grade 4) Ofsted judgement (or in the case a separate
inadequate Ofsted judgement for the adult provision); and
Performance below National Minimum Standards set each year with the
Department for Education and agreed with LCRCA as part of a wider
memorandum of understanding;

Financial Health
The Combined Authority will adopt a further trigger in identifying financial underperformance: inadequate financial health and/or control, as determined by Combined
Authority in accordance with our financial due diligence criteria set out in our standard
Selection Questionnaire.
The ESFA will share the financial health grade and key financial indicators with the
Combined Authority using their existing arrangements with dashboards to share the
information with Combined Authority and to supplement this with sharing of inadequate
assessments at the point of assessment. The information will be shared under a revised
data sharing agreement on an agreed timetable.
Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy
The ESFA early intervention and prevention strategy is designed to engage with
designated sixth-form colleges and academies that previously held this status and
General Further Education Colleges, where their financial plans, performance indicators
or other data sources suggests that there is a risk of failure. This includes being in
financial difficulty, with a significant risk of not being able to meet obligations.
The ESFA will work with these Colleges to support them to improve and to implement
swift mitigating actions that focus on ensuring a return to sound financial resilience and,
where required, improvement in quality. The aim is to lower the risk of a College
entering, or returning, into the scope of formal intervention measures and to achieve a
rapid turnaround at a lower cost to public funds, while maintaining high-quality learning
delivery to students, adult learners and employers.
The Combined Authority will be required to work closely with the ESFA to protect AEB
learners who may be impacted as a result of any of the above activity. This is a clear
opportunity to avoid duplication and maximise the resources available through the
ESFA in supporting Combined Authorities through devolution.
Audit and Assurance

Page
27 101

The ESFA will continue to deliver its programme of assurance and share relevant
documents and information where this concerns dual providers only. The Combined
Authority will be responsible where we contract with an organisation that the ESFA does
not contract with for un-devolved AEB.
The detailed audit element of this proposition requires alignment of funding
requirements and data returns and therefore covers the arrangement for year one only
where an Enhanced Data Service Offer has also been agreed with the ESFA.
Assurance over HE institutions remains the responsibility of the Office for Students
(OFS). Where a MCA/GLA contracts with a university or HEI and requires third party
assurance then this is required from the OFS.
Assurance over AEB funds spent by local authorities remains the responsibility of the
local authorities.
AEB funding and funding audits are component parts of the ESFAs overall assurance
framework. The audits deliver assurance on a lagged funding basis with assurance over
the academic year August 2019 to July 2020 planned to be performed from April 2020
to October 2020.
Each organisation will provide nominated lead individuals for all audit, assurance, fraud
and investigations activity.
These arrangements will form part of the ESFA published audit code of practice.

4.4.2 Role of the FE Commissioner
In November 2017, DfE published intervention policy in colleges and expansion of the
Further Education Commissioner role.
The expanded role for the FE Commissioner will focus on earlier engagement with
colleges with significant risks, or that are failing to improve. By engaging with Colleges
earlier, the FE Commissioner will be able to support leadership teams and governing
bodies with recommendations that will enable improvement to be accelerated. All
Colleges assessed as having triggered early intervention and prevention activity are in
the cohort of colleges that could be recommended for a FE Commissioner-led
diagnostic assessment.
The ESFA and Combined Authority will work with the FE Commissioner to prioritise
those colleges that would benefit from diagnostic support.
The outcomes from a FE Commissioner-led diagnostic assessment could include:


Endorsement of the Colleges approach to minimising risks and issues;

Page28
102




Requiring further action by the College to strengthen their existing plans; and
Escalation to formal intervention.

The ESFA and Combined Authority will continue to work with the College following a
diagnostic assessment and monitor the effectiveness of the recommendations and
actions in bringing about improvement.
4.4.3 Role of Ofsted
Ofsted is the Office for Standards in Education, Children‟s Services and Skills who are
responsible for inspecting and regulating services that care for children and young
people, and services providing education and skills for learners of all ages. They report
directly to Parliament and are independent and impartial. Ofsted will continue to have a
role in the inspection of providers delivering AEB and arrangements are being finalised
that describe the relationship with Combined Authorities with AEB devolution
responsibility. They currently:





4.5

Inspect maintained schools and academies, some independent schools, and many
other educational institutions and programmes outside of higher education;
Publish reports of their findings so they can be used to improve the overall quality of
education and training;
Report to policymakers on the effectiveness of these services; and
Have a strategy for 2017-20226.

Annual Assurance Framework Review

The AEB assurance framework will be subject to an annual review to ensure that it
remains fit for purpose and up to date. Where significant changes are made, for
example as a result of changes to funding availability, adjustments made to the
assurance framework will be agreed. The processes and approach underpinning the
AEB Commissioning will also be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that they
remain proportionate and provide the sufficient assurances regarding quality and the
best use public sector resources.

6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_dat
a/file/648212/Ofsted_strategy_2017-22.pdf

Page
29 103

Annex 1 Adult Education Budget DfE Guidelines for Assurances
Introduction
This document provides guidelines on the information the Department for Education
(DfE) would expect Mayoral Combined Authorities (MCAs) to have regard to when
taking on responsibility for the Adult Education Budget (AEB) from the start of the
2019/20 academic year, commencing 1 August 2019. These guidelines clarify what
assurances should be in place when administering the functions of the AEB, in addition
to the Government guidelines on the Single Pot Assurance Framework.
It is for MCAs to determine how best to address the guidelines when developing their
local assurance frameworks.
Accountable and transparent decision making for the AEB
In addition to the accountable and transparent decision-making guidance outlined in the
Single Pot Assurance Framework, MCAs will need to confirm that investment decisions
will be made for AEB funding with full consideration to the statutory entitlements,
which are detailed in the orders that were laid to devolve the functions for administering
the AEB to MCAs, which includes:
1. English and maths, up to and including level 2, for individuals aged 19 and over,
who have not previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4, or higher;
and
2. First full qualification at Level 2 for individuals aged 19-23, and/or first full
qualification at level 3 for individuals aged 19 to 23.
MCAs will also need to take into account how funding of the AEB will align to their
Strategic Skills Plans and support the delivery of local economic objectives. This should
include a description of the arrangements for enabling effective and meaningful
engagement of local (and national) partners in proposed use and evaluation of the AEB,
including but not limited to FE providers and their representative organisations
employers, National Careers Service, DfE/ESFA.
Base level monitoring and evaluation recommendations
Following devolution of the AEB, MCAs will be asked to provide the Government with a
report on the delivery of the functions, as part of the wider monitoring and evaluation
submissions that MCAs are required to submit as part of devolution agreements. The
submission should include, but not be limited to:
1. Their policies

Page30
104

2. Spend
3. Analysis of their own on delivery in their areas. This can draw on published
data from DfE and use other data where necessary to present this analysis.7
4. Local Impact - MCAs should consider the impact AEB devolution has had upon
skills in their localities, with regard to:
-

Overall participation in AEB funded provision
Number of learners exercising their statutory entitlement to full funding for:
English and maths up to Level 2
First full level 2 (learners aged 19-23)
First full level 3 (learners aged 19-23)
Completion and achievement rates

In addition to the recommendations above, MCAs may also want to produce further
monitoring and evaluation which goes beyond the data sets the DfE publishes annually,
such as:
Learner Satisfaction Survey - MCAs/GLA could choose to use the learner
satisfaction survey which captures learners‟ experiences of their college or
training organisation through a series of questions. The learner satisfaction
survey performance indicator score is calculated for each eligible college or
training organisation. This enables comparisons to be made against other college
or training organisations of the same organisation type and also allows
comparisons against any college or training organisations for which a score has
been calculated.
MCAs should develop their own robust monitoring and evaluation plans going forward,
to help identify and measure the impact of AEB spending in their area. The
Government‟s published Green Book contains useful information for developing these
plans and can be found in the link below:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmen
t_data/file/685903/The_Green_Book.pdf

7

This analysis could be released into the public by the government departments. For example, presenting AEB
devolution impacts to parliament.

Page
31 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY
To:

The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined Authority

Meeting:

8 March 2019

Authority/Authorities Affected:

All

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING AND
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: TRANSPORT AND AIR QUALITY
ALLOCATING FUNDS TO SUPPORT THE MAINTENANCE OF
THE KEY ROUTE NETWORK (KRN) IN 2019/20

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report follows-up the Combined Authority’s Annual Budget Report agreed on 1
February 2019. It should also be read in conjunction with a related report agreed by
members on 19 October 20181.

1.2

The report concerns a £3 million funding allocation for the 2019/20 financial year,
intended to support the maintenance of the Combined Authority’s Key Route Network
(KRN) of strategically important local roads.

1.3

The October 2018 report set out proposals to manage a similar funding allocation for
the current financial year (2018/19). The report also set out the main issues arising
from a detailed commission, in the form of a Highways Infrastructure Asset
Management Plan (HIAMP). The HIAMP assessed the condition of the KRN’s
carriageway on a consistent basis for the first time and provides a valuable part of the
evidence base.

1.4

Drawing on this evidence and on the proposals agreed for the current financial year,
approval is sought to disburse the £3 million as per Option 2a in the table set out in
Appendix Five to this report. This proposes the allocation of 25% of the fund by need
and 50% by KRN length to the six constituent local authorities, as per the arrangement
for the current financial year. The rationale for this is set out in section (4).

1

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/documents/s30655/Item%2015%20%20The%20condition%20of%20the%20Liverpool%20City%20Regions%20Key%20Route%20Network%20%20Report.pdf

Page 107

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority:
(a)

agrees to delegate the disbursement of the pre-agreed £3 million allocation to
support structural maintenance on the Key Route Network in 2019/20 to the
Combined Authority’s Treasurer, as per Option 2a in the table in Appendix Five
to this report;

(b)

acknowledges the key findings issues arising from the Highways Infrastructure
Asset Management Plan (HIAMP) the Key Route Network, in particular the very
significant maintenance backlog, affecting Liverpool most acutely, and the
importance of a preventative maintenance life cycle planning regime in
providing best value-for- money; and

(c)

receives a follow-on report setting out the wider policy and funding implications
arising from the evidence base that has been developed in respect of the
condition of the KRN .

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

Members will recall that the establishment of a Key Route Network (KRN) of
strategically important local roads, and the creation of a single asset management plan
formed a core component of the 2015 Devolution Deal with Government.

3.2

This approach seeks to move towards a more strategic approach to managing the city
region’s most important local roads. It recognises that the five Merseyside local
authorities and Halton Borough Council have been responsible for managing the city
region’s roads in their capacity as Local Highway Authorities for over 20 years.

3.3

The Combined Authority agreed the criteria for, and the definition of the KRN in April
20162. In agreeing this report, members acknowledged the significant benefit that a
more co-ordinated approach would deliver in managing this network of roads.

3.4

In October 2018, members received a report on an important component of the
evidence base, in the form of a Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
(HIAMP) developed by Capita and Xais. This assessed the condition of the KRN’s
carriageway on a consistent basis for the first time, given the historic management
arrangements.

3.5

In headline terms, the principal conclusion from the work is that the condition of the
highway network is degrading, and that current funding is not at a level to properly
address the maintenance backlog of the highway network. For example, 16% of the
overall KRN requires structural maintenance and 39% is in need of preventative
maintenance. The consultants’ analysis also shows that to maintain current levels of
service (i.e. maintain a steady state) that:

2

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=364&MId=1814&Ver=4

Page 108





approximately £12 million is required per annum for Structural Maintenance;
approximately £2.5 million is required for Preventative Maintenance; and
the current maintenance need “backlog” is approximately £56.8 million

3.6

Whilst the backlog is an issue affecting the city region as a whole it will be appreciated
that the maintenance backlog in Liverpool is especially acute, meaning that
interventions on these roads demand the highest priority in terms of evidenced need.
To this end, the October 2018 report sought approval to allocate a £3m topslice of the
Capital Maintenance fund to directly support the KRN in 2018/19.

3.7

The October 2018 report also provided context on a new code of practice (“Well
Managed Highway Infrastructure”) and which has been published by the UK Roads
Liaison Group. This is not a statutory document but guides responsible authorities in
highway management. It is set to change the future direction of the UK’s highway
maintenance and management through the application of good asset management
principles and adoption of a risk-based approach.

3.8

The adoption of the new code is expected to be tested in the courts, especially where
local highway authorities are seeking to defend third party liability claims, such as
damage to vehicles from potholes. It is important to note that the existence of the new
evidence base for the KRN, available through the HIAMP, will be especially significant
from a legal and liabilities perspective.

4.

PROPOSALS FOR 2019/20

4.1

As an immediate priority, members will recall that a £3 million budget has again been
allocated from the 2019/20 transport capital budget to support the maintenance needs
of the KRN3. The detail of the reallocation of this is subject to further approval by
members, and this requirement forms the basis of this report.

4.2

Firstly, looking at the spatial location of the maintenance backlog drawn from the 2018
HIAMP surveys, the more detailed maps in Appendix One and Two highlight the
priority areas requiring structural intervention (resurfacing) and priority areas for
preventative maintenance (patching or surface treatment) within the KRN. Appendix
Three and Four summarise, in rank order, the top 20 sites requiring structural and
preventative maintenance, respectively. In other words, the highest priority sites are
those in the worst condition, as reflected by their higher scores.

4.3

As members will recall from the October 2018 report, a series of options for disbursing
the £3 million of funding in the 2018/19 financial year were set out. These options
were intended to provide context and transparency. These options range from a
“worst first” approach based on the HIAMP’s prioritised list of top scoring structural
maintenance schemes, and which are mainly in Liverpool, to permutations that factor
in more established formulae. These formulae factor in the relative length of the KRN
in each local authority area, or else historic government funding formulae, and which
result in a greater spread of funding across the six local authorities. It is noted that for

3

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/documents/s35454/Item%204%20%20Mayoral%20Combined%20Authority%20Budget%20Setting%20Repor%20201920.pdf

Page 109

the current financial year, and for 2019/20, the £3 million topslice of the transport
budget to support KRN maintenance is an arbitrary figure that, in itself, has limited
justification on a needs basis. This is an issue that needs to be reviewed longer-term.
4.4

Notwithstanding this, the evidence within the HIAMP advocates that the funding is
disbursed wholly by need, as per Option 1 in the table in Appendix Five. Equally,
disbursing all of the funding to each of the local authorities on an equal share or
historic formulaic basis (Options 2 and 3) would has limitations, given that such an
approach would conflict with the evidence base in the HIAMP. Neither would such an
approach maximise its ability to help address the KRN’s maintenance backlog in the
most effective way.

4.5

For 2018/19, the Combined Authority considered the retention of an element of
formula to be reasonable and pragmatic. This recognised the transition from a
longstanding formulaic reallocation of monies, towards the more evidence-based
approach to allocating funds as advocated by the HIAMP. Attempting to allocate all of
the funding by need from the outset constituted a very significant and very rapid policy
shift, at a time that the KRN concept was still evolving. It also recognises the
maintenance backlog across the KRN as a whole.

4.6

Accordingly, a transitional approach was agreed, through the allocation of 25% of the
funding by need (using the HIAMP’s evidence) and 75% by the relative length of the
KRN in each local authority area. This sought to move gradually from historic
approaches towards a more sophisticated way of allocating funding that supports the
principles agreed as part of the Devolution Deal.

4.7

Building on this pragmatic agreement by members for 2018/29, it is proposed that this
approach is carried forward into 2019/20. This continues to recognise the relative
length of the KRN in each local authority area in addition to physical condition. As
such, for the next financial year, it is proposed to maintain Option 2a. This
entails:


Allocating 25% of the £3m fund by need as per the HIAMP; and
Allocating 75% of the fund by KRN length

4.8

This represents a shift away from historic formulaic allocations, whilst providing a
pragmatic solution for local authorities that would otherwise see a reduction in funds
awarded to them as a result of the HIAMP’s evidence, and in a way that recognises
the maintenance backlog across the KRN as a whole.

4.9

As noted above, the HIAMP document highlights the importance of preventive
maintenance as well as structural maintenance as part of an effective asset
management regime. It recommends that funding is split between the two regimes to
achieve best results. However, again in 2019/20, it is proposed that all of the £3m
million is used for structural works only, rather than for any preventive
maintenance work. This reflects the challenges associated with scheduling and
procuring preventive maintenance works during the current financial year, given that
the working window for delivering preventative works is from April to September each
year.

Page 110

4.10 It is also noted that officers are not yet in a position to gauge the impact of the current
year’s £3m structural maintenance works programme on the KRN’s condition and on
the associated maintenance backlog. In some cases, resurfacing schemes are still in
the process of being delivered. Surveys will be undertaken to track changes in the
condition of the KRN on an ongoing basis. In addition, some of the top-scoring
schemes in the table in Appendix 3 will be schemes that will be funded from the
2018/19 funding allocation. As such, funding conditions would be imposed by the
Treasures to require the 2019/20 funding to be spent only on works that have no
alternative funding route, and again, on a “worst first” basis.
4.11 Finally, and looking further ahead, it will be appreciated that the issues arising from the
HIAMP work are numerous and complex. These will form the basis of more detailed
work programmes and follow-on reports which will identify some of the main policy and
funding issues and responses. This is with the fundamental aim of securing greater
consistency of approach across the city region, and to move towards a more
consistent and higher standard of KRN. Some of these wider issues being worked
upon at present include:



Maintenance policies across the city region (e.g. on skid resistant surfacing and
construction standards)
Intervention policies and criteria across the LCR (e.g. response times to incidents
and failures on the network)
Staffing implications, including the need for dedicated resources to support the
management and maintenance of the KRN

4.12 A very significant issue that arises from the HIAMP concerns the process and rationale
for allocating funds in a way that tackles the maintenance backlog in the most
effective, and logical way. Again, this issue will form the basis of a later report.

5.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Financial
The implications are potentially significant. The evidence set out within the HIAMP
advocates a change in the way that highways maintenance capital funds are allocated,
and a move away from a formulaic re-allocation of resources to each local authority
towards a needs-based model, based on the surveyed condition of the KRN. As the
maintenance backlog is especially acute in Liverpool, the evidence warrants a greater
proportion of funding being allocated to the KRN within City of Liverpool.
The evidence also highlights the significant backlog of highways maintenance on the
KRN across the city region, and the very significant additional resources that would be
needed to bring the condition of the KRN up to standard.
However, there are also likely to be significant resource implications associated with
moving towards a more streamlined and consistent approach to managing the KRN
through consolidated contractual arrangements, and as a result of changes to
intervention levels and standards. These cannot be quantified at this stage.

Page 111

In the immediate term, the report proposes a transitional and pragmatic means by
which to disburse £3m of funding that has previously made available by the Combined
Authority to support the maintenance of the KRN in 2019/20.
5.2

Human Resources
The creation of a centralised or consolidated KRN team is likely to have financial
implications for the Authority and/or the constituent local authorities. It is worth noting
that most Combined Authorities and Mayoral Combined Authorities either have, or are
establishing dedicated teams to deal specifically with the management of their Key
Route Networks.

5.3

Physical Assets
This report highlights the maintenance backlog that exists on one of the city region’s
most significant physical assets, namely its KRN The report identifies the need for
significantly greater levels of funding to address the backlog, and a move towards a
“needs based” approach to the allocation of funding in future.

5.4

Information Technology
There are no direct implications arising from this report.

6.

RISKS AND MITIGATION

6.1

A poorly maintained KRN brings with it significant risks to road users through damage
to vehicles and as a consequence of personal trips and falls. This in turn presents
legal and financial risks to the local authorities as the local highway authorities. There
is also a risk that a poorly maintained highway adversely affects levels of sustainable
trip making and potentially, future economic investment decisions.

6.2

The standardisation of service delivery and intervention standards, to bring
consistency to the KRN may present financial and investment risks, whereby more
costly standards are subsequently agreed in recognition of the importance and status
of the Key Route Network. This will be the subject of a follow-on report.

6.3

There are also reputational risks associated with a failure to move towards a
streamlined and enhanced KRN management regime, building on the evidence set out
within this HIAMP, as this forms a core component of the devolution deal agreed with
Government in November 2015.

7.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1

No direct implications as a result of this report. More detailed workstreams will give
further consideration to the equality and diversity implications of any new KRN
operating models, investment proposals or delivery arrangements.

Page 112

7.2

It is important to note that the underlying aim of the KRN regime is to improve
conditions for all users of the highway and to bring greater clarity and consistency to
anyone wishing to use, or work upon the KRN

8.

COMMUNICATION ISSUES

8.1

The HIAMP is important as a communication tool for elected members and members
of the public alike, to aid the public’s understanding the rationale for particular
maintenance regimes (e.g. the importance of preventative maintenance) and
associated investment decisions on the KRN.

8.2

Should the management of the KRN evolve to a more centralised model of
management at a Combined Authority level, then it will be imperative that a
communications plan is developed. This is so that clarity exists as to roles and
responsibilities amongst utility companies, statutory undertakers and so forth and so
that queries, complaints and fault reporting from members of the public and elected
members are directed to the relevant contact points.

9.

CONCLUSION

9.1

This report follows-up the Annual Budget Report agreed by the Combined Authority on
the 1 February 2019 in respect of a further £3 million funding allocation for the 2019/20
financial year. This is intended to support the maintenance of the Combined
Authority’s Key Route Network (KRN) of strategically important local roads.

9.2

Members are recommended to agree to disburse this funding as per Option 2a in the
table in Appendix Five. This proposes the allocation of 25% of the fund by need from
the Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan (HIAMP) and 75% by KRN
length to the six constituent local authorities. This represents an ongoing commitment
to shifting away from historic formulaic allocations, whilst providing a pragmatic
solution for local authorities that would otherwise see a reduction in funds awarded to
them as a result of the HIAMP’s evidence, to recognise ha backlog across the KRN as
a whole.

9.3

The report will be followed up by a more detailed report setting out more specific
implications and policy and funding recommendations in respect of the KRN.

KIRSTY PEARCE
Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning
CLLR LIAM ROBINSON
Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality

Page 113

Contact Officer(s):
Huw Jenkins, Lead Officer - Transport Policy, LCR Combined Authority
Mick Noone, Director of Integrated Transport, Merseytravel

Appendices:






Appendix One - Plan showing areas of Structural intervention (Resurfacing) within the
KRN
Appendix Two - Plan showing areas requiring Preventative Maintenance within the
KRN
Appendix Three - Top 20 “worst first” ranked list of KRN roads requiring remedial
structural maintenance (October 2018)
Appendix Four - Top 20 “worst first” ranked list of KRN roads requiring preventative
maintenance (October 2018)
Appendix Five - Options for disbursing £3 million Key Route Network Funding Topslice
in 2019/20

Background Documents:




LCR Combined Authority Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan, August
2018, Xais/Capita
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, Lifecycle Planning & Forward Works
Programme, August 2018, Xais/Capita
Management System – Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan, XAIS/Capita

Page 114

Appendix One
Plan showing areas of Structural intervention (Resurfacing) within the KRN

Page 115

Appendix Two
Plan showing areas requiring Preventative Maintenance within the KRN

Page 116

Appendix Three
Top 20 “worst first” ranked list of KRN roads requiring remedial structural maintenance in October 2018
Rank

SECTION

ROAD N0

Page 117

1

19501214/998

A561

2
3
4
5
6
7

A5047/120
B5178/107.1
B5178/107.5
A5036/125.1
M62/110
A580/150

A5047
B5178
B5178
A5036
M62
A580

8
9

A5046/105
A561/197.5

A5046
A561

10
11

A580/510
A5049/128

A580
A5049

12

B5178/116.1

B5178

13

A580/334

A580

14
15
16

A5036/126
A5036/131
A580/150

A5036
A5036
A580

17
18

A5036/130
B5178/106

A5036
B5178

SECTION DESCRIPTION
SPEKE BOULEVARD(FORDS
EXIT) from FACTORY GATES
to SPEKE BVAR
Holt Road to LAUREL ROAD
WOOD LANE to KINGS DRIVE
WOOD LANE to KINGS DRIVE
A5036 to Regent Street
TBC
LOWER BRECK ROAD to
OAKFIELD ROAD
A5038 to A59
UPP WARWICK ST to
PARLIAMENT ST
A5058 to MILL LANE
Silverdale Avenue to LOWER
BRECK ROAD
BARNHAM DRIVE to Paignton
Road
FLORENCE STREET to
LANGHAM STREET
SALTNEY STREET to A5054
A5055 to A5056
LOWER BRECK ROAD to
OAKFIELD ROAD
A5054 to A5055
CALDWAY DRIVE to WOOD
LANE

START

END

300

372

350 400
0 1184
900 1184
0 694
0 1007
300 499

LENGTH

TREATMENT

72 CW - Patching (Machine
Laid)
50
1184
284
694
1007
199

CW - Resurface
CW - Resurface & Binder
CW - Resurface
CW - Resurface
CW - Resurface
CW - Resurface

VM
DISTRICT
SCORE
311
KNO

223
201
158
156
153
152

LPL
LPL
LPL
LPL
LPL
LPL

0
0

354
348

354 CW - Resurface
348 CW - Resurface

152
150

LPL
LPL

0
0

940
650

940 CW - Resurface & Binder
650 CW - Resurface

146
145

LPL
LPL

0

100

100 CW - Resurface

144

LPL

0

279

279 CW - Resurface

144

LPL

0
0
0

564
488
200

564 CW - Resurface
488 CW - Resurface
200 CW - Resurface

144
142
142

LPL
LPL
LPL

0
0

647
194

647 CW - Resurface
194 CW - Resurface

138
137

LPL
LPL

Rank

SECTION
1A5058/130

19
20

A57/150

ROAD N0
A5058
A57

SECTION DESCRIPTION
SLIP RD ON N to A57
PRESCOT RD
KENSINGTON to DAULBY
STREET

START

END

LENGTH

TREATMENT

400

613

213 CW - Resurface

0

403

403 CW - Resurface

VM
DISTRICT
SCORE
133
LPL
132

LPL

Page 118

Appendix Four
Top 20 “worst first” ranked list of KRN roads requiring preventative maintenance in October 2018
Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6

Page 119

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

SECTION

ROAD No.

SECTION_DESCRIPTION

START END

LENGTH

A57/155

A57

ANSON STREET to DAULBY STREET

0

220

220

A5038/130

A5038

LONDON ROAD to RENSHAW STREET

0

200

200

GRP/P102/040

A58

FRECKLETON ROAD TO MARGERY ROAD

0

150

150

A580/155

A580

BELMONT ROAD to BRECKFIELD ROAD

0

230

230

A5038/115

A5038

RANELAGH STREET to LIME STREET

0

157

157

B5178/117

B5178

BENTHAM DRIVE to CHILDWALL VALLEY
ROAD

0

226

226

NEW/C198/010

A572

ACACIA STREET TO LYME STREET

0

117

117

A/313115/015

313115

MERTON ROAD A5057 WASHINGTON
PARADE TO STANLEY ROAD

0

185

185

A57/135

A57

ST OSWALDS STREET to GREEN LANE

0

410

410

A580/338.5

A580

BULLENS ROAD to WALTON LANE

0

851

851

GRP/P102/035

A58

STANDRING GARDENS TO FRECKLETON
ROAD

0

54

54

A5038/190

A5038

BOUNDARY to WESTMINSTER ROAD

0

279

279

A561/110

A561

SPEKE HALL RD to WOODEND AVENUE

0

1089

1089

NEW/C132/025

A572

MARIAN AVENUE TO CROW LANE WEST

0

299

299

A57/140.1

A57

B5189 to Frogmore Road

0

572

572

TREATMENT_DESC
CW - Micro-Asphalt with
>10% Patch
CW - Maintenance Patch
CW - High Friction
Surfacing
CW - Micro-Asphalt with
>10% Patch
CW - Micro-Asphalt with
>10% Patch
CW - High Friction
Surfacing
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
>10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
>20% Patch
CW - High Friction
Surfacing
CW - Micro-Asphalt with
>10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
>10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
>10% Patch

VM
LA
SCORE
225 LPL
218 LPL
200 STH
183 LPL
181 LPL
169 LPL
166 STH
160 SEF
157 LPL
155 LPL
150 STH
148 LPL
147 LPL
142 STH
141 LPL

Rank
16
17
18
19
20

SECTION

ROAD No.

SECTION_DESCRIPTION

START END

LENGTH

A5038/186

A5038

Brewster Road to BOUNDARY

0

174

174

NEW/C132/010

A572

WHARF ROAD TO COMMON STREET

0

48

48

NEW/C132/015

A572

COMMON STREET TO SHORT STREET

0

52

52

NEW/C132/005

A572

BOROUGH BOUNDARY TO WHARF ROAD

0

161

161

NEW/C132/020

A572

SHORT STREET TO MARIAN AVENUE

0

266

266

TREATMENT_DESC
CW - Micro-Asphalt with
>10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch
CW - Surface Dress with
<10% Patch

VM
LA
SCORE
140 LPL
138 STH
138 STH
138 STH
138 STH

Page 120

Appendix Five
Options for disbursing £3 million Key Route Network Funding Topslice in 2019/20
NB: preferred option in red type

Local
Authority

Option 1
Option 2
allocate
Allocate
full £3m by full £3m by
HIAMP
KRN length
need
(estimated)

Page 121

Halton

0

Knowsley

£15k

Liverpool

£2.985m

St Helens

0

Sefton

0

Wirral

0
£3m

15%
£450K
14%
£420k
26%
£780k
13%
£390k
18%
£540k
14%
£420k
£3m

Option 2a
Allocate
25% of
fund by
need and
75% by
KRN length

Option 2c
Allocate
75% of
fund by
need and
25% by
KRN length

Option 3
Allocate
full £3
million by
historic
DfT
formula

£338k

Option 2b
Allocate
50% of
fund by
need and
50% by
KRN
length
£225K

£113k

£319k

£218k

£116k

£1.33m

£1.88m

£2.434m

£293k

£195k

£98k

£405k

£270k

£135k

£315k

£210k

£105k

£3m

£3m

£3m

13.18%
£396k
10.95%
£329k
24.92%
£748k
14.30%
£429k
17.11%
£513k
19.54%
£588k
£3m

Option 3a
Allocate
25% of
fund by
need and
75% by
DfT
formula
£297k

Option 3b
Allocate
50% of
fund by
need and
50% by
DfT
formula
£198k

Option 3c
Allocate
75% of
fund by
need and
25% by
DfT
formula
£99k

£250k

£172k

£83k

£1.307m

£1.864m

£2,426k

£322k

£215k

£107k

£385k

£257k

£128k

£440k

£293k

£147k

£3m

£3m

£3m

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14
Transport Committee

Transport Committee
31 January 2019

Present:

Councillor L Robinson, Chair
Councillor G Friel, Deputy Chair
Councillors A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes,
H Howard, D Johnson, A Lavelle, P McKinley,
N Nicholas, M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin,
K Roberts, J Stockton, C Rowe, H Thompson,
J Williams and F Wynn.

84.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ron Abbey Dennis
Baum, Jimmy Jackson and Susan Murphy.
__________
The Chair informed the Committee about the Transport for the North press
release.
The Chair also informed the Committee that Councillor Ron Abbey’s wife
and Councillor Susan Murphy had not been well recently and on behalf of
the Committee passed on his best wishes.
__________

85.

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Helen Thompson declared a pecuniary interest in Item 6
Quarterly Bus Update and Item 7 Public Question Time and left the room
when both items were being considered, by virtue of being a member of the
Liverpool City Council Planning Committee.

86.

Minutes of the Last Meeting
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport
Committee held on 10th January 2019, be approved as a correct record.

Page 123

Transport Committee

87.

Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20
The Transport Committee considered a report presented by the Head of
Customer Delivery, Gary Evans that outlined the legal procedure for
revising the level of the tolls, summarised how the current level of tolls were
arrived at and made proposals for the level of tolls payable in 2019/20.
Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to the
Mersey Tunnel Tolls 2019/20 –
 Clarification on how the Fast Tag was going to be cost neutral
and the increase in cost to non-residents of the LCR;
 What was the historic debt and when it will be paid;
 Congratulated the Finance Team for balancing the budget and
the work done to produce the paperwork; and
 Congratulated the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram for delivering
the promises made to LCR.
Gary Evans informed the Committee that the proposals are cost neutral, as
there was an expected reduction in income which was directly offset by an
increase in income from non LCR residents with the existing usage
continuing. It was also difficult to predict how people would behave and how
those people made choices of travel through the tunnels in comparison to
ferries, trains and buses. Use of the Tunnels is also dependable on the fuel
costs, demographics and other factors. He stated that the historic debt is
linked to the Tunnels Act 2004 and is expected to be repaid by 2048. The
Tunnels Act states that in 2048, it was up to the Liverpool City Region to
decide what happened with the tunnel tolls moving forward.
Councillor Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development Lead)
congratulated the Metro Mayor, Steve Rotheram as one of the few
politicians who has made a manifesto pledge and stuck to it and that this
has restored faith in politics. He commented that the actual delivery of the
promises puts to bed some of the accusations about the tunnels being a
“cash cow” and that there would always need to be some form of income to
pay for the tunnels, its operations and maintenance. He stated that
residents who lived outside of the Liverpool City Region would not be
pleased, but the residents of the Liverpool City Region had built it,
maintained it and supported it and its was some good news for the people
of the Liverpool City Region and for its economy.
Councillor Paul Hayes proposed the following amendment to the
recommendations in the report: -

Page 124

Transport Committee






Add to the end of recommendation a) - “and welcomes any reduction
in tolls for residents of the City Region.”
Replace recommendation c) with - “This committee expresses
concern that in its current form the proposals would mean those who
contribute to our public services and local economy, but who happen
to live just outside the City Region will have to pay more to get to
work. It asks the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to
consider this before implementing the schedule of tolls contained in
Table 1.”
Add to the end of recommendation d) - “The Tolls on the Mersey
Tunnels harms our local economy. This committee takes this
opportunity to express its view that the Mersey Tunnels should be toll
free and commits to work with all decision makers to achieve both
the political will and resources to achieve this.”

There was no seconder, so the amendment fell.
The Chair, Councillor Robinson stated that in order to seek support for the
amendment, it should have been shared with members of the Committee in
advance of the meeting.
Councillor Nathalie Nicholas (Tunnels, Highways and Key Route Network
Lead) thanked the team for all their hard work and producing the report and
wanted to echo the comments made by Councillor Foulkes.
The Chair, Councillor Robinson proposed the following amendment which
was seconded by Councillor Gordon Friel, to insert at the end of
recommendation (d): “and calls upon the Conservative Government to make good on their
manifesto pledges to reduce tunnel tolls for local residents, with the aim of
the tunnels being ultimately free to use, and for them to fund this in its
entirety.”
A vote was taken on the Amendment and it was unanimously agreed.
A vote was then taken on the following Substantive recommendations and it
was unanimously agreed: -

Page 125

Transport Committee

RESOLVED that the Transport Committee:
a) note the contents of this report;
b) note the level of “authorised tolls” for the Mersey Tunnels as
determined by the County of Merseyside Act 1980 (as amended by
the Tunnels Act 2004), with details on calculation methods explained
in section 3 of this report;
c) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority
implement a schedule of tolls contained in Table 1 below with effect
from Monday 1 April 2019: -

Vehicle
Class

Authorised
2019/20
2019/20 Fast 2019/20 Fast
Toll
Cash Toll
Tag Toll –
Tag Toll –
(November
LCR
Non LCR
RPI)
Resident*
Resident
1
£2.00
£1.80
£1.00
£1.80
2
£4.10
£3.60
£2.40
£2.40
3
£6.10
£5.40
£3.60
£3.60
4
£8.20
£7.20
£4.80
£4.80
*Liverpool City Region (LCR) resident defined as living within the
electoral boundaries of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens,
Sefton and Wirral.

d) recommend that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority
continue to offer the discounts set out in paragraph 3.19 of the report
for 2019/20 and calls upon the Conservative Government to make
good on their manifesto pledges to reduce tunnel tolls for local
residents, with the aim of the tunnels being ultimately free to use,
and for them to fund this in its entirety.

88.

Budget Setting Report 2019/20
The Committee considered a report presented by the Director of
Corporate Services, John Fogarty relating to the draft revenue budget
and capital programme for Merseytravel, the price/fare increases
proposed for 2019/20 and the revenue grants payable to Merseytravel in
respect of general operations and Mersey Tunnels for 2019/20.

Page 126

Transport Committee

Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to
the Budget Setting Report for 2019/20: –









Congratulated the Finance Team for the work done to balance
the budget;
Enquired about the equality and diversity implications;
The expenditure in the Programme Management Office;
The Prescot Lifts and the Capital Programme;
The Mersey Ferries cruise services and the increased in charges
by multiples of 50p;
The Supported Bus Service Fares increase to the adult fares by
10p, no change to the children's supported fare but no increase in
charges to the bus operators for departure charges; and
The Mersey Ferries Charter programme.

Councillor Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development
Lead) informed the Committee that there was a freeze last year and the
year before was a 5% cut so things are in an amazingly good place,
despite the Government austerity. He stated that it has been quite clear
that the region has been targeted for more cuts than any other region
across the UK and that money has been moved away Metropolitan
Councils to “Shires” owned by Conservative Governments. He
commended the proposed budget to the Committee and thanked the
officers for working so diligently to set the budget and produce the
papers.
John Fogarty informed the Committee that there were no planned
changes and that Merseytravel needed to make routes more viable and
more attractive to commercial operators and to develop a strategy to
support the bus network to get more people to use the routes.
Gary Evans informed the Committee that the Mersey Ferries Charter
produced about 4/5 years ago established a single charge, but year on
year there has been an increase in line with inflation. There has been a
huge growth over the time in the cruise programme and work was
underway to develop more programmes to bring to market. Own
programmes have significantly increased.
The Chair, Councillor Robinson stated that there were challenging
budgetary times and any fares increase was never popular, but it was
still cheaper than Stagecoach and Arriva. Officers would be looking at
the bus station departure charges and would be bringing back proposals

Page 127

Transport Committee

to the Committee for an increase in charges at a future meeting. He
thanked both John Fogarty and Sarah Johnston for their hard work in
pulling the budget together in such an easy to digest format, which was
open and transparent and honest to the public and also thanked officers
for managing much of the reduction in the back office having to make
some difficult decisions.
The Transport Committee unanimously agreed the following
recommendations including a revised version of Appendix C that was
tabled at the meeting and as appended to these minutes: RESOLVED that the Transport Committee: a) requests Liverpool City Region Combined Authority to approve
2019/20 operating grants for both public transport and Mersey
Tunnels operating activities as detailed in section 4 of the report;
b) approves the fare/ price increases included within the report and,
subject to approval, seek that the financial implications of these fare
increases are included within the draft budget for 2019/20; and
c) approves the Capital Programme as detailed in Section 4 of the
report.
89.

Quarterly Bus Update
The Committee considered a report presented by Laura Needham (Bus
Strategy Programme Manager) relating to the Third Quarter of 2018/19
with regard to achievements of the LCR Bus Alliance, the latest progress
on improving the procurement management and quality of supported
services through a series of reforms, progress on developing the
commitment of the LCR Devolution Deal in respect of improving bus
services and other key initiatives delivered to improve the bus offer
across the region.
Members asked questions and commented on the following relating to
the Quarterly Bus Update:  The 153 bus that runs through Eccleston in St Helen’s that is not
picking up anyone when it goes into the bus station having waited
for 10 minutes;
 Were officers aware of the issues relating to Avon and the
financial concerns and why wasn’t anything done to support or
assist Avon;

Page 128

Transport Committee










Do the Bus and Legal Teams referred to in paragraph 3.4.1 of the
report, address the social value concerns when agreeing
contracts for the supported bus services;
Can any assurances be given that consultation with passengers
and local residents will take place in advance while the Bus
Rerouting Strategy is being planned and implemented;
The Key Route Network (KRN) is not mainly used by buses, but
yet the Bus Network Performance Survey Team is due to
undertake surveys on stops and shelters across the KRN and
roads, why is this;
Would like to see more social impact analysis information
included in reports in future; and
There needs to be more consultation and information sharing with
passengers, too many times things are done retrospectively, for
example, Arriva changed its bus schedule for the No. 9 bus which
affects NHS staff including nurses. There was no consultation, no
information, no notices or timetable changes on the bus shelters.

Laura Needham informed the Committee that she didn’t have responses
for all the questions asked and would be happy to provide responses in
writing to the Committee following the meeting. She stated that in
relation to the Bus Rerouting Strategy that it was led by Liverpool City
Council and that a consultative forum had been arranged and letters
have been sent to local residents. She also commented that in relation
to the KRN that it was being used due to it being suggested in the
passenger survey and was being used as part of the trial.
Frank Rogers informed the Committee that Merseytravel had to be
incredibly careful about what is said and done with bus operators and
that Merseytravel couldn’t pre-determine what would happen with Avon
and then take action as Merseytravel could be liable and action could be
taken against Merseytravel. He further stated that the team did
everything they could to re-instate services in light of the financial
position of the organisation, but it was not for Merseytravel to get
involved in another organisation to figure out the outcome. He
commented that Merseytravel were looking to increase the services and
promote the use of the bus for young people, by increasing quality
control standards and making them think of the use of the bus, but it
does not yet include social value in terms of the service.
Steve Foulkes (Finance and Organisational Development Lead)
informed the Committee that Merseytravel did well to reinstate bus

Page 129

Transport Committee

services as best as possible given the financial circumstances to the
organisation, but consideration needed to be given to the ripple effects
of bus services, for example, housing estates and housing offers where
there are no bus services, which could have a negative impact on
communities.
The Chair, Councillor Robinson informed the Committee that things are
done through proper consultation, but there are elements that are still
subject to planning applications. People don’t just get on the bus for
nothing, they have a purpose, whether it is to get to work, or go
shopping and do things, but it is about the understanding of what’s going
on and how to provide the service to match it. He stated that he was a
bit worried about changes to routes and services without consultation or
information and that he would bring it to the attention of the Bus Alliance
which was part of their agreement.

90.

Public Question Time
The Committee received four questions from Mr Andrew Wennell and Mr
Mark Magill:
Mr Wennell’s questions: Question 1
Back in 2018 once the upgrade work to Lime Street was completed we
would be having 3 new train routes. But it’s now January 2019 and still
no new routes have materialised. When are we going to see the 3 new
routes from Liverpool Lime Street commence?
Question 2
We have various express bus routes running from Liverpool X1, X2, X3,
X5 & X8. Which are all good bus routes to get to places quicker. But
only the X2 & X8 run 7 days a week. The others only run Monday to
Saturday. So why are places like Kirkby, Widnes and Runcorn left with
the slower bus routes on a Sunday?
The Chair thanked Mr Wennell for submitting his questions and for
attending the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be
provided within 10 working days.

Page 130

Transport Committee

Mr Magill’s questions: Question 1
What is the nature of Merseytravel's involvement in the proposed bus
hub development at Old Haymarket? Is it purely advisory in terms of
questions about bus traffic or is the relationship deeper?
Question 2
In the planning documents, the Council estimates that circa 1,700 buses
per day will use the facility, with 120 using it an hour in peak. Does
Merseytravel have any specialist knowledge on how this amount of
buses can safely and efficiently use the facility?
The Chair thanked Mr Magill for submitting his questions and for
attending the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be
provided within 10 working days.

91.

Petitions and Statements
No petitions or statements were submitted for this meeting.

92.

Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair
There was no other urgent business.

___________________________
CHAIR

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132

